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REPORT ON OPERATIONS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Dear Shareholders,

before commenting on Your Company results at 31 December 2012, certain factors that have had a
significant impact on the Group’s performance, and, therefore on Finmeccanica, performance during
the year should be explained.

At 31 December 2012, the Finmeccanica Group’s (the Group) results were higher than those of the
corresponding period of 2011, except for the business trend, and were in line with the 2012 budget.
Initiatives undertaken to different extents by the various group companies during 2011 enabled the
Group to improve its efficiency by drawing up and rolling out in-depth and detailed plans to improve
competitiveness and to reorganise each company.

These plans regarded all critical business areas, including production processes (streamlining of
facilities, product/component standardisation, lean manufacturing), purchases (streamlining of
suppliers and make or buy policies), engineering (lean engineering, streamlining of investments),
workforce (streamlining the indirect to direct ratio), controllable costs, overheads and administrative
expense (streamlining of personnel and IT systems and the corporate structure). Guidance and
monitoring undertaken during the 2012 financial year by the parent confirm that the steps are being
rolled out as scheduled in terms of physical progress and that the trend of financial statements figures
is consistent with the quantitative targets in terms of overall benefits for 2012 as well as for 2013
(note, the objectives for 2013 equal to €mil. 440).

As early as this reporting period, the results were especially significant in the Aerospace and
Defence segment, while the vehicles line of the Transportation business segment is encountering
difficulties in pursuing the objectives of the reorganisation plan, mainly due to production issues.

At 31 December 2012, in financial and economic terms, the effects of such benefits were higher than

the budget forecasts and equal to about €mil. 280.

In the light of the above, the 2012 financial year closed with a net loss of €mil. 700 (net loss of €mil.
1,376 in 2011), which was mainly attributable to the write-downs that were necessary on the investee
companies operating in the Defence and Security Electronics segment and in the vehicles line of the

Transportation segment.

For the purposes of a better understanding of the following paragraphs, note that, in consideration of
the role of Finmeccanica as a holding company that exercises industrial and strategic control over a
number of companies operating in different sectors, we deemed it appropriate to comment, in large
sections of the Report on Operations, the activities of the Group as a whole and the performance of
the markets in which the investee companies operate rather than referring only to the ordinary

operations of Finmeccanica.



ANALYSIS OF THE INCOME STATEMENT, BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT CASH FLOWS

In order to provide a better understanding of Finmeccanica Spa’s income statement, balance sheet

and statement of cash flows, the following reclassified statements have been prepared.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT Notes 2012 2011
(€thousand)

Revenue 28 74,016 73,826
Purchases and personnel expense *) (138,950) (187,177)
Amortisation and depreciation (9,586) (11,251)
Impairment losses - -
Other net operating income (expenses) (%) 4,095 3,216
EBIT (70,425) (121,386)
Net financial income (expense) 33 (666,661) (1,249,300)
Income taxes 34 37,045 (4,865)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS 700,041 (1,375,551)
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations - -

NET PROFIT (LOSS) (700,041 (1,375,551)

Notes on the reconciliation between the reclassified income statement and the statutory income statement:

(*)
)

Includes “Purchases”, ““Services” and ““Personnel expense™

Includes the net amount of “Other operating income™ and ““Other operating expenses™

As to the most important items:

revenue is in line with the prior year and refers to the management fee Finmeccanica
receives for the services provided to the Group companies in accordance with the direction
and coordination it exercises;

purchases and personnel expense decreased in comparison with 2011, following a reduction
in the workforce and early retirement incentives, included in 2011 purchases and personnel
costs, which were paid for the reorganisation of the Parent’s management. As a
consequence, EBIT came from negative €mil. 121 of 2011 to negative €mil. 70 of 2012;

net financial expense totalling €mil 667, against €mil. 1,249 of net expense in 2011,
significantly decreased as a result of lower impairment of equity investments (€mil. 1,256,
mostly referable to Meccanica Holdings USA, SELEX ES and AnsaldoBreda, compared to
€mil. 2,539 in 2011) and of higher dividends received from Group’s companies (€mil. 614
compared to €mil. 398 in 2011). Moreover, it is highlighted that in 2011 the company
benefitted from the gain of €mil. 1,014 on the sale of the equity investment in Ansaldo

Energia.



The following table compares the balance sheets at 31 December 2012 and at 31 December 2011:

RECLASSIFIED BALANCE
SHEET
(€thousand)

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities
Capital assets

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Progress payments and advances
from customers

Working capital

Provisions for short-term risks and
charges

Other net current assets (liabilities)
Net working capital

Net invested capital

Equity

Net financial debt (cash)

Net (assets) liabilities held for sale

Notes

*)

15
24

21

)

19

(***)

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

8,768,061 8,930,842
(204,365) (189,564)
8,563,696 8,741,278
79,573 65,035
(56,014) (55,311)
23,559 9,724
(262,562) (924,150)
(496,459) (57,863)
(735,462) (972,289)
7,828,234 7,768,989
4,230,751 4,931,075
3,597,483 2,837,914

Notes on the reconciliation between the reclassified balance sheet and the statutory balance sheet:

™)
)

(***)

The net invested capital (€mil. 7,828) is essentially in line with the prior year, as a result of a
decrease in capital assets (mainly due to the write-downs of equity investments) which is offset by an
increase in working capital (chiefly referable to the use of the provision for risks on equity
investments against the recapitalizations performed during the year). As a result of the

abovementioned actions taken in relation to the subsidiaries’ capital, the net financial debt increased

Includes all non-current liabilities except ““Non-current loans and borrowings™.
Includes “Income tax receivables”, “Derivative assets” and “Other current assets”, excluding “Income tax

payables™, “Derivative liabilities” and “Other current liabilities”.

Includes the net amount of “Non-current assets held for sale”” and “Liabilities associated with assets held for

sale”

by €mil. 3,597 compared with €mil 2,838 at 31 December 2011.



The reclassified statement of cash flows at 31 December 2012, compared with the previous year, is

as follows:
€thousand 2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 695,373 1,269,103
Gross cash flows from operating activities (55,240) (94,154)
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities (*) (25,586) 39,828
Funds From Operations (FFO) (80,826) (54,326)
Changes in working capital (14,912) (15,355)
Cash flows generated (used) from/in operating
activities (95,738) (69,681)
Cash flows from ordinary investing activities (2,946) (257)
Free operating cash flow (FOCF) (98,684) (69,938)
Interventions involving equity investments, disposals and
acquisitions (1,209,035) 546,546
Changes in other investing activities (**) 495,688 515,241
Cash flows generated (used) from/in investing
activities (716,293) 1,061,530
Capital increases, net of purchase of treasury shares (1,009)
Dividends paid (236,752)
Cash flows from financing activities 1,323,846 (1,320,335)
Cash flows generated (used) from/in financing
activities 1,323,846 (1,558,096)
Exchange rate differences on cash and cash equivalents (12,298) (7,483)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,219,486 695,373

(*) Includes the amounts of ““Changes in other operating assets and liabilities and provisions for risks and charges”,
“Net interest paid” and “Income taxes paid”

(**) Includes the change in non-current financial assets (included in “Other investing activities”) and ““Dividends
received from subsidiaries”

The year 2012 ended with a €mil. 524 increase in cash and cash equivalents, specifically:
- cash flows from operating activities came to a negative €mil. 96 (negative €mil. 70 in 2011);
- cash flows from investing activities were negative for €mil. 716 (€mil. 1,061 in 2011 thanks
to the sale of Ansaldo Energia);
- cash flows from financing activities were equal to €mil. 1,323 (negative €mil. 1,558 in

2011), as a result of the higher debt to Group’s companies.

Finally, the brakdown of the net financial debt at 31 December 2012, compared with the

corresponding information at 31 December 2011, is provided below.



€thousand 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011
Short-term loans and borrowings 70,107 77,613
Medium/long-term loans and borrowings 912,806 944,038
Cash and cash equivalents (1,219,486) (695,373)
NET BANK DEBT AND BONDS (CASH)

(236,573) 326,278
Securities (55) (4,873)
Loans and receivables from related parties (2,405,849) (2,572,108)
Other loans and receivables (40) (40)
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES AND SECURITIES (2,405,944) (2,577,021)
Loans and borrowings to related parties 6,239,173 5,088,163
Other short-term loans and borrowings 827 494
Other medium/long-term loans and borrowings -
OTHER LOANS AND BORROWINGS 6,240,000 5,088,657
NET FINANCIAL DEBT (CASH)

3,597,483 2,837,914

Finmeccanica’s net financial debt at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 3,597, compared with €mil.
2,838 at 31 December 2011. The figure incorporates, inter alia, the impact of a series of events
involving significant amounts, such as:
e the actions taken totalling €mil. 1,257 with respect to the capital of certain subsidiaries,
specifically:
- €mil. 762 part of which to cover losses (Emil. 384) and part to make a capital contribution
(€mil. 378) to Alenia Aermacchi SpA;
- €mil. 463 part of which to cover losses (€Emil. 422) and part to make a capital contribution
(€mil. 41) to Ansaldobreda SpA;
- €mil. 25 to cover losses and to make a capital contribution to Bredamenarinibus SpA;
- €mil. 7 in favour of Elsacom NV.
e the collection of €mil. 614 related to dividends paid by Group companies;
e the payment of €mil. 132 for the purchase of the equity investment in BCV Investments S.A.

and of the related hybrid financial instruments.

As to the composition of the debt, the bank debt largely consists of medium/long-term bonds
totalling €mil. 495 (nominal value of €mil. 500), as well as amounts resulting from drawing upon the
€mil. 468 (nominal amount of €mil. 463) facility entered into with the European Investment Bank

(EIB), which was already in place in 2011.

As usual, the cash and cash equivalents that appear in Finmeccanica’s accounts as a result of the net

cash flow received from Group companies during the year was deposited in leading Italian and
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foreign banks holding at the very least an “investment grade” credit rating. The result of this is a
considerable debt between Finmeccanica and its related parties. Both figures should decrease as a
result of the higher use of cash by Group companies that traditionally occurs in the first few months

of the year.

Borrowings from related parties consist, inter alia, of a medium/long-term debt, including current
portions, of about €mil. 3,202 (€mil. 2,589 at 31 December 2011) arising from loans granted to
Finmeccanica by its subsidiary Finmeccanica Finance SA, for amounts and maturities essentially in

line with those of bond obligations assumed by Finmeccanica Finance SA.

Finmeccanica obtained a revolving credit facility with a pool of Italian and foreign banks in
September 2010 for €mil. 2,400 (final maturity in September 2015), which remained entirely unused
at the year-end.

Moreover, Finmeccanica had additional short-term unconfirmed credit lines for around €mil. 612,
entirely unused at 31 December 2012. Finally, there are also unconfirmed guarantees of around €mil.

2,054.

The notes to the financial statements contain information on the operational criteria used in
managing exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, risk related to equity and transactions with related

parties.
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“NON- IFRS” ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Finmeccanica’s management assesses the Company’s and Group’s performance based on a number

of indicators that are not envisaged by the IFRSs.

As required by CESR/05-178b Recommendation, below is a description of the components of each

of these indicators that are relevant to Finmeccanica Spa:

] EBIT: i.e. earnings before interest and taxes, with no adjustments. EBIT also does not include
costs and income resulting from the management of equity investments and other securities,
nor the results of any sales of shareholdings, which are classified on the financial statements as

“Financial income and expense”.

= Free Operating Cash-Flow (FOCF): this is the sum of the cash flows generated by (used in)
operating activities and the cash flows generated by (used in) investment and divestment of
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, and equity investments, net of cash flows
from the purchase or sale of equity investments that, due to their nature or significance, are
considered “strategic investments”. The calculation of FOCF for the periods being compared is

presented in the reclassified statement of cash flows shown in the previous section.

= Funds From Operations (FFO): this is cash flow generated by (used in) operating activities
net of changes in working capital. The calculation of FFO for the periods being compared is

presented in the reclassified statement of cash flows shown in the previous section.

= Working capital: this includes trade receivables and payables, contract work in progress and

progress payments and advances from customers.

= Net working capital: this is equal to working capital less provisions for current risks and other

current assets and liabilities.

= Net capital invested: this is the algebraic sum of non-current assets, non-current liabilities and

net working capital.

= Net financial debt: the calculation model complies with that provided in paragraph 127 of
Recommendation CESR/05-054b implementing EC Regulation 809/2004. For details on its

composition, refer to Note 20.

] Workforce: the number of employees recorded in the register on the last day of the year.

12



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Finmeccanica acts as a holding company with industrial and strategic coordination of its subsidiaries
and joint ventures. As required by IAS 24, in addition to the companies in which Finmeccanica has a
direct or indirect controlling interest, related parties include associates, joint ventures and consortia,
key management personnel and their close family members, as well as any entities controlled by the
Ministry for the Economy and Finance (“MEF”).

The transactions, which are carried out and regulated at arm’s length, relate to business (disposals
and purchases of goods and services within the Group’s usual operations), financial (ordinary
financing granted/obtained and the charging of related interest income or expense) and other
relations (including all residual activities, as well as contractually-governed transactions of a tax

nature, for those companies participating in the national tax consolidation scheme).

It should be noted that in 2010 Finmeccanica issued, and on 13 December 2011 updated, a specific
“Procedure for Related Party Transactions” pursuant to CONSOB (the Italian Commission for Listed
Companies and the Stock Exchange) Regulation no. 17221 of 12 March 2010, containing provisions
on “related party transactions” and to the subsequent CONSOB Resolution no. 17389 of 23 June
2010, as well as in the implementation of article 2391-bis of the Italian Civil Code - which is
available on the Company’s website (under Investor Relations/Corporate Governance, Related Party
Transactions section).

This Procedure aims at defining the rules to ensure the transparency and material and procedural
fairness of Transactions with Related Parties, as set out later in this document under point 4.9 of the

Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder Structure to which reference is made.

Pursuant to article 5.8 of CONSOB Regulation no. 17221 of 12 March 2010, note the following most
important transactions, which were carried out by Finmeccanica S.p.a. in the 2012 financial year,
through subsidiary companies identified on the basis of the indicators provided for by the

abovementioned procedure and by Annex 3 attached to CONSOB Regulation no. 17221 /2010:

13



Parties involved

Relationship

Purpose of the
transaction

Transaction
consideration

Alenia Aermacchi S.p.A. 100%
owned by FNM S.p.a.

Alenia Aermacchi
Sp.A

Cassa Depositi e
Prestiti S.p.A.

Alenia Aermacchi S.p.A. 100%-
owned by FNM S.p.a.

Alenia Aermacchi

SpA SACE S.p.A.

CDP S.p.A. owned by MEF

SACE S.p.A. owned by MEF

Assignment of
receivables from Alenia
Aermacchi S.p.A. to
Cassa Depositi e Prestiti
Sp.A

Insurance intervention
of SACE S.p.A. in
favour of Alenia
Aermacchi S.p.A.

€th. 233,190

€th. 311,563

The abovementioned transactions benefitted - pursuant to article 13.3.c) of CONSOB Regulation no.

17221/2010, as well as article 11.2c) of the abovementioned procedure - from the exemption

envisaged for the ordinary transactions concluded at arm’s length or standard conditions. These

transactions, were notified to CONSOB in compliance with the provisions under article 13.3 c) of

CONSOB Regulation no. 17221/2010 and were put in place following the execution of the contract

between Alenia Aermacchi S.p.A. and the Government of the State of Israel, which was signed on 19

July 2012, for the supply no. 30 M-346 advanced trainer aircraft and related logistics support to the

Israeli Air Force.

Furthermore, note the following most important transactions, which benefitted from the exemption

provided for in article 14.2 of CONSOB Regulation and in article 11.2.¢) of the abovementioned

Procedure.

Parties involved Relationship Purpose of the Transaction
transaction consideration
Sale of the SELEX Galileo
Ltd equity investment from
. . SELEX Electronic - o Finmeccanica S.p.a. to
Finmeccanica S.p.a Systems S.p.A. Subsidiary (100%) SELEX Electronic System €th. 1,176,765
S.p.A.
Sale of the SELEX Galileo
S.p.A. equity investment
. . SELEX Electronic o from Finmeccanica S.p.A.
Finmeccanica S.p.a Systems S.p.A. Subsidiary (100%) to SELEX Electronic €th. 364,996
System S.p.A.
Granting of financing by
. Finmeccanica S.p.a. to
Finmeccanica S.p.a SESIZE;(SESleCiomc Subsidiary (100%) SELEX Electronic System €th. 581,640
M bA- Sp.A.
Granting of financing by
. . Finmeccanica . o Finmeccanica Finance S.A. €th. 600,000
Finmeccanica S.p.a. Finance S.A. Subsidiary (100%) to Finmeccanica S.p.A.
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With reference to these transactions, it should be noted that the first three transactions, which were
completed in the early days of January 2012, relate to the combination of the Group’s activities in
the Defence and Security Electronics segment in Europe into a single transnational business, whereas
the fourth transaction refers to the medium/long-term loan agreement between the Group’s
Luxembourg holding company and Finmeccanica.

It should be noted that there were no other related party transactions, which materially impacted on
the Finmeccanica’s financial position or its results as at 31 December 2012, and that no changes or
developments took place in relation to the related party transactions described in the Directors’

Report at 31 December 2011.

The disclosures on transactions with related parties required under CONSOB Communication
DEM/6064293 of 28 July 2006 are found in this section, in the financial statements and in the
explanatory notes to the financial statements of Finmeccanica Spa. There are no transactions that can

be identified as atypical and/or unusual as set out in said CONSOB Communication.

The following table summarises the amounts of transactions with related parties (a breakdown is

shown in Notes 12 and 26) occurred in 2012 and in the prior year.

31 Dec. 2012 Subsidiaries Associates Joint Ventures  Consortia (*) Other related Total

(€ thousand) parties

Non-current receivables

- financial 248,699 248,699
- other 42 28 3 73

Current receivables

- financial 2,369,412 14 35,342 884 197 2,405,849
- trade 50,120 180 17,805 1 602 68,708
- other 48,354 91 4,296 5 147 52,893

Non-current payables
- financial 2,184,612 2,184,612
- other

Current payables

- financial 3,829,817 224,744 4,054,561
- trade 22,279 43 1,138 17 637 24,114
- other 694,341 69,583 312 764,236
Guarantees 16,513,363 12,250 2,770,873 19,296,486
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2012

(€ thousand)
Revenues

Other operating income

(**)
Costs (¥**)
Financial income

Financial expenses

(**)

31 Dec. 2011
(€ thousand)

Non-current
receivables

- financial

- other

Current
receivables
- financial
- trade

- other

Non-current
payables

- financial

- other

Current payables
- financial

- trade

- other

Guarantees

2011
(€ thousand)
Revenues

Other operating income

(**)
Costs (¥**)

Financial income

Subsidiaries Associates Joint Ventures  Consortia (*) Other related Total
parties

60,501 13,515 74,016

30,624 1 4,632 13 35,270

(42,633) (584) (223) (108) (43,548)

87,978 18 10,280 11 98,287

(203,848) (1,283) (205,131)

(*)  controlled, associated, related and jointly controlled consortiums
these include the recovery of those costs that in the income statement adjust the related cost items
(***) the difference with the income statement is represented by the recovery of costs
Subsidiaries Associates Joint Ventures  Consortia (*) Other Total
related
parties
291,550 - 2,770 - - 294,320
42 28 - 3 73
2,233,786 28 337,491 606 197 2,572,108
39,039 178 16,242 1 602 56,062
10,205 91 7,373 5 148 17,822
2,573,411 - - - - 2,573,411
1,989,738 - 525,014 - - 2,514,752
21,470 43 1,592 24 707 23,836
282,074 - 62,465 - 311 344,850
16,475,182 12,250 3,254,411 - - 19,741,843
Subsidiaries  Associates Joint Consortia (*) Other Total
Ventures related
parties

59,506 - 14,320 - - 73,826
31,924 1 16,845 - - 48,770
(50,283) - (1,162) (288) (548) (52,281)
94,292 18 13,160 6 - 107,476
(206,835) - (4,854) - - (211,689)

Financial expenses

(*) controlled, associated, related and jointly controlled consortiums

(**) these include the recovery of those costs that in the income statement adjust the related cost items

(***) the difference with the income statement is represented by the recovery of costs
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CONSOB Market Requlation, Art. 36

In accordance with CONSOB provisions contained in the Market Regulation and specifically Art. 36
of Resolution 16191/2007, Finmeccanica made the checks on the subsidiaries that were incorporated
and are governed under the laws of non-EU Member States and that, as a result, became significantly
relevant based on the requirements under Art. 151 of the Issuers’ Regulations adopted with
CONSOB Resolution 11971/1999. As regards the non-EU foreign subsidiaries (DRS Technologies
Inc, Meccanica Holdings USA Inc, AgustaWestland Philadelphia Co, AgustaWestland Tilt-Rotor
Company Inc, AgustaWestland Inc and Alenia Aermacchi North America Inc) identified based on
the above regulations and in compliance with the regulations of local laws, these checks revealed the
existence of an adequate administrative and accounting system and the additional requirements

envisaged in said Art. 36.

Information pursuant to articles 70 and 71 of Consob Issuers’ Regqulations

With a Board of Directors’ resolution on 23 January 2013 the Company adopted the simplification
regime under articles 70/8 and 71/1-bis of the Issuers’ Regulations adopted with CONSOB
Resolution 11971/1999 as subsequently amended. By this resolution the Company chose the option
to make exceptions to the obligation to issue the documents required by the law when significant
transactions (such as mergers, spin-offs, capital increases by means of the conferral of assets in kind,

acquisitions or disposals) occur.
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FINMECCANICA AND THE COMMERCIAL SCENARIO

The global economic situation in 2012 continued to show low growth in industrialized Countries,
with a persistent crisis in the Eurozone, and reduced growth of numerous newly-industrialized
Countries compared to the previous years. This caused a slowdown in internal demand and barter
trades, with a reduction in expected growth rates of industrial production over the coming years.
Specifically, in the Eurozone the recurrent tensions about the sovereign debts of some Countries and
the general economic stagnation are leading to the adoption of restrictive measures aimed at reaching

the balancing of accounts, and an effective economic recovery is expected only after 2014.

The markets in which the Group operates (Aeronautics, Helicopters, Defence and Security
Electronics, Space, Defence Systems, Energy and Transportation) continued to suffer from the
negative effects of global macroeconomic trends, particularly because of the strong pressure exerted
on public budgets and the general slowdown in demand internationally, although the medium/long-

term outlook is still positive for the main market segments.

Particularly, in the Defence segment, 2012 reported global expenses equal to about $bil. 1,600. For
the first time since 1998 the US budget showed a significant decrease of about 1.2%, as a result of
the reduction in field operations (Iraq, Afghanistan) and of the postponement of some upgrading
programmes. These phenomena now appear to have a structural nature (also following the re-
election of President Obama to the White House), with a substantial reduction in supplementary
expenses connected with Peace Enforcement operations and stability in the base budget, which is
mainly due to the performance of multi-annual programmes of development and acquisition of new
military equipment. Another point of interest is the so-called sequestration process which envisages
linear cuts within the public budget. Cuts on the military sector would entail a reduction in the range
of $bil. 500 in the next 10 years. The gradual reduction in the US expenses is largely offset by
further growth in defence investments in newly-industrialized areas (Asia — Pacific region) or areas
that are still subject to regional tensions (Middle East, North Africa). In the coming years the
traditional BRIC countries (Brazil, Russia, India, China), as well as other "emerging" Countries,
which are interested in developing their own skills in advanced and high-tech industrial sectors, will
be the main relevant markets in the sector (despite all the limitations related to the transfer of
sensitive technology). However, the United States will remain the main national market both in
terms of size (about one third of the global total) and in terms of the characteristics of the demand.
Europe, where spending should grow by less than 1% per year on average, will still represent about
16-17% of the total global market. However, it is important to note that major investment
programmes for new weapons systems were confirmed in the US and in Europe, although some over

a more protracted time period or for lower volumes. It is also interesting to note that much of the

18



expertise developed in the Defence industry can be increasingly transferred to related sectors, which
are characterized by high growth dynamics, such as, for example, security, environmental

monitoring and protection, Cyber Security and Smart City.

Therefore, the global Aerospace, Defence and Security market showed a slight growth trend (thanks
in part to good performance in Civil Aeronautics), with important specific characteristics in each of

the various business segments.

Within the Aeronautics market, the civil aircraft segment, for both commercial and regional
transport, showed growth, with an effective recovery to pre-crisis levels starting from 2012. Thanks
to higher traffic demand (+ 5% on average per year for passenger transport), renewed profitability of
the major airlines and the resulting need to replace and expand fleets, deliveries of new aircraft are
expected to be equal to an overall value of more than €bil. 900 (78% for commercial aircraft, 13%
for business jets and 9% for regional aircraft) over the next ten years, with an average annual growth
rate of around 4%. The greatest growth rates will be seen in wide-body aircraft (i.e. aircraft with two
aisles), the sub-segment worth the most in absolute terms with the most important development and
production programmes (B787, A350XWB and A380) and regional aircraft, where the trend should
be towards the development of a new-generation aircraft offering better capacity and operational
performance than models currently in service. The narrow-body aircraft sub-segment (i.e. aircraft
with a single aisle), therefore, was substantially stable, even if it is expected to increase starting from
2016, driven by deliveries of re-engined Airbus (Neo A320) and Boeing (B737Max) aircraft. A new
generation of narrow-body aircraft is expected to be launched after 2025. Prime contractors are
continuing to make greater use of outsourcing of structural components and sub-systems, while new
competitors from newly industrialised Countries continue to enter the market. As a result, the

outsourced structural components market is growing at an average rate of about 6% per year.

The military aircraft segment suffered from the stagnation in investments in the Defence market and
from the slowdown of some important acquisition programmes, both in the USA and in other
Countries. The market will be substantially stable (or will show a slightly reduction) until 2014, and
then it will expand significantly in the following years as a result of upgrading and renewal needs of
operating fleet that can no longer be postponed. Therefore, the total value of new deliveries over the
next ten years is estimated at about €bil. 400, with an additional market for upgrading programmes
and logistics of almost €bil. 350. The latest-generation multi-role aircraft segment is the largest,
worth over 50% of the total market, followed by aircraft for special missions (applications for naval
and coastal surveillance represent a particularly important part), by medium- and large-transport
aircraft and advanced training aircraft. The most important technological developments currently

being pursued relate to: (i) unmanned combat aerial vehicles for reconnaissance and combat
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applications, which are expected to enter into service in the US in 2020 and in Europe in 2025; (ii)
use of new materials; (iii) the full insertion of vehicles in net-centric systems and (iv) fine-tuning
new uses that meet asymmetric warfare and rapid response requirements. Despite all the limitations
connected to the restrictive regulations governing the use of unmanned vehicles in civil air traffic
airspace (the so-called “non-segregated airspace”), a growing demand in unmanned vehicles is being
recorded for civil protection and environmental monitoring purposes. Several development
programmes are currently being carried out in many countries, also on the basis of the lessons learnt

in the military use of this aircraft.

The Helicopters segment, both civil and military applications, will show an overall slight increase
over the next ten years, with an average annual value (referring to new helicopter deliveries) at
around €bil. 15-16, which is much higher than the average for recent years. It should be noted that,
while the military market has important characteristics of a cyclical nature (a slight decline is
expected to start in 2015 due to cuts on some programmes), the demand in the civil sector is steadily
increasing (the average value of the civil market, which is currently equal to about 25% of the total
helicopters sector, will represent, indeed, about 50% of the total around 2021). In fact, this sector
includes both the strictly commercial applications (e.g. the VIP / Corporate transport) and the sales
of non-military government applications, such as security, environmental monitoring, emergency
medical services, connections to off-shore platforms. There are a multitude of factors underlying
market growth which regard technology (availability of new satellite navigation technologies,
development of unmanned aircraft, success of tilt-rotor technology), operations (larger range of use,
higher speeds, use in hostile environments) and regulations (reducing the environmental impact,
greater security for over-flight of densely populated areas, utilisation in all weather and visibility
conditions). In particular, technology currently being developed will make helicopters even more
important in operational environments for asymmetric warfare, counter-guerrilla warfare, controlling
and interdicting illegal activities, monitoring the environment and rescue operations. The gradual
growth in the number of operational helicopters increases the importance of maintenance, upgrading
and logistics activities, which has been further emphasised by the growing demand for turnkey
solutions and operational support over the entire product life-cycle.

From a geographical point of view, Europe and the United States of America remain mature markets,
while the BRIC Countries, Asia and Africa represent the most attractive areas for growing

requirements for helicopters for different types of applications (i.e. mobility, security and defence).

The Defence and Security Electronics market continues to represent the largest market of interest
to the Group. Despite cutbacks in the Defence budgets of the major countries in the world, the
volumes and trends in the market have remained stable compared with last year (around €bil. 150

annually), with a shift towards homeland security/security systems (estimated at around €bil. 70 per
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year) where the growth rate has been higher, at around 5% per year, due to rising demand for
security (border surveillance, security systems for critical infrastructures, security for transport
systems, etc.), growing demand for cyber-security solutions driven by the need to make ICT systems
invulnerable to attempts to access and damage data and information and increased investments in
environmental monitoring and managing natural disasters and civil emergencies.

In particular, the cyber market is experiencing significant growth at a rate of around 10% annually,
with strong investments by the US and the major European nations.

By contrast, the growth trend in defence electronics equipment and systems has been more
contained, at around 2% per year.

Within the sector, technology exchanges between military applications and civil and security
applications are becoming more evident, so that the main industrial groups in the sector are turning
their attention to adjacent areas of application, such as Healthcare, Energy (Clean Renewable
Energy), Urban Security and Mobility (Smart and Safe City), by leveraging the traditional planning
and management capacity of complex systems for military use.

The continuing global financial crisis and the resulting rationalisation of government spending, as
well as the related re-prioritising of budgets given customers’ different operational needs, have
pushed demand for low-cost solutions and contractual models that include the supply by the industry
of support services and solutions for installed capacity. For these reasons, industrial competitiveness
and selective investment in R&D are crucial to ensuring complete alignment with market drivers,

including responding to growing competition (also a result of the drop in the “captive” component).

The Space market includes both production, especially the development and manufacture of
satellites and orbiting manned infrastructures, and provision of services (earth observation, satellite
navigation, communications, science) for civil and military applications. Another business area
includes the in-orbit launch of satellites and control of satellite constellations. The worldwide market
is worth around €Dbil. 80 annually, of which around 25% is for satellite services in those application
segments in which the Group operates. The institutional market, both civil and military, represents
more than 75% of the total, with a leading role of management government Bodies, both national
(e.g. NASA in the USA) and supranational (EU, ESA). For this reason, thanks to the proven strategic
nature of the space sector at an institutional level (also confirmed by the recent ESA Interministerial
Conference), the Space market is among those least sensitive to the downturn in the world economy.
In the area of manufacturing, demand by government, even if in the presence of a significant
slowdown of some development programmes, has shown for long time annual growth rates by
around 2-2.5% on average, and the market for commercial applications is showing interesting signs
of recovery. Demand in the military segment is driven by demand for new satellites used for earth

observation and secure communications, the development of new satellite systems based on dual
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purpose technologies and new demand for the development of observations systems for security
applications. The government civil systems market, which is excepted to receive growing support
from the European Community, centres mainly around programmes for replacing and upgrading in-
orbit telecommunications satellite capacity and the development of new scientific and navigation
applications. The rate of growth is rather high (around 5-6% per year) in the satellite services
segment, driven by new technological developments (broadband and related networks, value-added

services) and by demand in the security, mobility and environmental monitoring arenas.

The Defence Systems market includes the segments land vehicles and land and sea weapons
systems, missile systems, and underwater systems. As a result, in part, of the experience with
asymmetric warfare in Iraq and Afghanistan, the land vehicles segment has seen peak demand in
recent years, based on the need to modernise a large part of the fleets of armoured vehicles
(particularly multirole wheeled vehicles and vehicles for personnel transport) so as to ensure greater
protection against land mines and light fire. The demand is expected to be substantially stable over
the next ten years, with average values of about €bil. 15-16 per year, in line with the trend of the
major countries to cut their expenditure budgets and the resulting delays in major programmes. The
demand increasingly tends to lighter vehicles — both wheeled and tracked - which can be used more
quickly and flexibly in field operations, including the so-called “protected vehicles” that are able to
ensure high personnel safety against light fire and mines. The sector is also supported by important
technological developments, which are related to the use of new materials, the development of
turrets and remote-control weapon systems, the construction of unmanned vehicles. Interesting
developments are also being seen in the naval weapons segment, despite an overall reduction in
demand related to a standstill in new construction programmes. The greatest opportunities will
continue to be in guided munitions systems to be used, above all, with medium calibre weapons,
which are particularly effective in coastal operations and interdiction actions on missions to protect
against asymmetrical threats.

In the underwater systems segment, together with the traditional demand for on-board sonar systems
and for both heavy (launched from naval platforms) and light (also launchable from air platforms)
missiles surveillance systems for protecting coastal and harbour infrastructures are undergoing a
profound change with the integration of mobile systems (underwater and surface systems). Navies
are attempting to develop new multi-function systems (military, security and environmental
protection) over the medium-long term using technologies already available, for integrated
protection against land, air and sea threats, which includes protection against nonconventional threats
within underwater surveillance.

Moreover, providing navies with multi-function platforms will also create opportunities in the area

of anti-torpedo countermeasures that can even be integrated in small-scale platforms.
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Finally, in the missile systems market there has been a slight increase, with an estimated overall
value of about €bil. 170 over the next ten years. Almost 60% of the demand relates to the air defense
systems, both land based and on board; the United States, at a geographical level, still represent the
main national market, but their share, compared to the overall market, is expected to fall from current
50% to 35% in 2021, due to the significant increase in demand in the Asia Pacific area and in the
Middle East. The greatest market drivers are related to the need to renew the stock of missiles with
new systems that provide greater versatility and attack precision. Another important development is
being seen in systems for protecting urban areas and high-value civilian and military infrastructures
from the threat of missile attacks. These operating needs positively influence developments in the
areas of sensors (both on land and on-board the missiles), flight control, and integrated command and

control systems.

The Energy market has always been characterized by a strong cyclical demand, which is linked to
the renewal and modernization of systems installed in highly industrialized Countries and to long-
term investments programmes for the construction of new power plants and infrastructures in newly-
industrialized Countries. 2011 and 2012 showed a new downturn in trend, after a peak recorded in
2007/2008, resulting from significant orders in the Chinese market and the sharp decline (-35% of
the total) recorded in the following years due to the economic crisis. In this case, the demand
concerns, above all, the gas turbine systems (both open cycle and combined cycle) and renewable
energy plants, above all solar and wind energy. It is estimated that, over the next ten years, global
demand for power plants and components for generating electricity from fossil and nuclear fuels and
renewable resources will have an annual average market value of around €bil. 340, with a peak of
about €bil. 360 between 2017 and 2020. Fossil fuel plants will continue to be the main product
segment, recording a gradual growth of importance of the gas turbine technology compared to steam.
Renewable energy plants, which represent about 25% of the total demand, are expected to record a
contained but constant increase, whereas the nuclear sector shows a further decrease, with a share
that is slightly more than 5% of the total market, due to also the negative impact of the Fukushima
accident.

In general, customer preferences should, more than in the past, favour components that ensure
greater efficiency while reducing emissions and providing greater flexibility in operations. The
renewable energy market (i.e. wind, photovoltaic, hydroelectric, etc.) continues to grow, particularly
in Europe, thanks to generous government incentive plans, and in China, and is expected to become
increasingly important in the United States and the Middle East.

Finally, the post-sale service and maintenance market is also expected to grow because certain
countries, as a result of the crisis, had postponed programmes to replace installed capacities in favour

of extraordinary maintenance so as to extend the useful life of their plants. Demand is expected to
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reach around €bil. 35, mainly in servicing gas turbines. Growth is also expected in servicing nuclear
power plants, driven by demand for stress testing and programmes to extend the remaining useful

life of plants.

In the rail Transportation market, the competitive rolling stock segment (according to the
definitions of the trade association UNIFE [Union des Industries Ferroviaires Européennes, Union of
European Railway Industries]) is substantially stable at about €bil. 16 per year. These values, which are
related to the supply of new vehicles, must be added to the service market (maintenance, spare parts,
upgrades and revamping of operational fleet), which increased significantly from €bil. 14 per year in
2007-2011 to €bil. 18 per year in 2017-2021. The demand is particularly stable in the regional and
urban transport sector, thanks to the increasing demand for transport in densely populated regions
both in Europe and in newly-industrialized Countries, particularly Brazil and China. This trend is
being also favoured by technically more complex customer needs (for driverless trains, catenary-free
pick-up systems, etc.). Western Europe is the area of greatest interest in terms of the technical
characteristics of the products and the rate of technological innovation required due to infrastructure
constraints and to increase safety. Nonetheless, in terms of the size of the market, Asia has now
surpassed Europe. In the regional rail transport segment, we expect to see strong growth due to a
combination of growth in emerging nations and the replacement of rolling stock in the industrialised
countries. In the area of high-speed trains, growth is expected to be strong over the next few years
thanks to environmental concerns that support rail transport, as well as to the development of the
trans-European network and the liberalisation of passenger transport in Europe, the USA and China.
Finally, in the area of post-sale service and maintenance, customers continued to prefer “turnkey”
solutions.

With regard to the signalling and transport systems segment, the market, worth around €bil. 12-13,
continues to expand despite the impact of the crisis, and demand is tending to grow at an average
annual rate of around 3.5%. The main drivers for this market are the important programmes to
construct new transportation infrastructures that enable different modes and different standards to
interoperate, as well as by the need to increase safety, efficiency and traffic capacity. Technological
development in terms of upgrading railway lines and pressure on the service and maintenance costs
for signalling systems remain of key importance. The transport systems market is expected to grow
at an average annual rate of 6%, more than double the 2% growth expected for the signalling market.
In the bus segment, over the last two years the European market has posted a slight decline (-4%)
compared to the previous two-year period. In Italy, however, the lack of national government

funding has considerably slowed purchases by local authorities.
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PERFORMANCE BY DIVISION

In order to provide a better presentation of the operating performance of activities directly or
indirectly controlled by Finmeccanica, we deem it better to comment on the performance of the
divisions rather than restricting comments to the performance of direct subsidiaries. To give full
information below are reported the key figures taken from the 2012 financial statements of the most

significant subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities.

Key figures on the main subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities

Net debt Order New |Workforce
€ million Revenue EBIT (liquidity) backlog orders (no.)

AgustaWestland SpA 2,650 257 261 8,113 2,625 5,836
AgustaWestland Philadelphia Co (USA) 600 49 (16) 199 648 543
AugustaWestland Ltd 1,481 103 (685) 3,933 1,298 3,168
Alenia Aermacchi SpA 2,484 65 (1,012) 7,362 2,473 11,159
Ansaldo Energia SpA (*) 1,118 61 295 3,248 1,384 1,602
Ansaldo STS SpA (cons.) 1,248 117 (302) 5,683 1,492 3,991
AnsaldoBreda SpA 426 (326) 195 2,943 785 2,248
DRS Technologies Inc (cons.) 2,156 (862) 843 1,688 1,928 7,428
Finmeccanica Finance S.A. - 3) 2,000 - - 1
Fata SpA 161 6) @ 111 55 198
GIE ATR (*) 1,170 89 (28) 2,947 1,393 351
MBDA SAS (cons.) (¥) 2,824 373 (1,612) 8,539 2,259 2,395
Meccanica Holdings USA Inc - - 799 - - -
Oto Melara SpA 421 46 (85) 1,006 389 1,136
PZL-SWIDNIK SA 181 17 77 213 169 3,181
SELEX Elsag Ltd 157 1 (60) 200 188 664
SELEX Galileo SpA (¥*) 780 75 53 1,563 792 2,673
SELEX Electronic SystemLtd 1,123 112 (317) 94 841 3,801
SELEX Elsag SpA (**) 866 48 732 1,951 897 5,305
SELEX Sistemi Integrati SpA (**) 603 (86) 372 1,182 323 3,261
Telespazio SpA (*) 326 16 55 1,119 396 701
Thales Alenia Space SAS (cons.) (*) 2,064 141 (804) 3,988 1,371 2,438
Whitehead Sistemi Subacquei SpA 129 12 31 244 51 407

(*) amounts relating to 100% of the company /groups
(**) It was merged into Selex Electronic System SpA on 1 January 2013
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HELICOPTERS

€ million 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

New orders 4,013 3,963
Order backlog 11,876 12,121
Revenues 4,243 3,915
Adjusted EBITA 473 417

ROS 11.1% 10.7%
Research and development 506 472

Workforce (no.) 13,050 13,303

Finmeccanica, through the subsidiary AgustaWestland NV and its investees, is a world leader in the

civil and military helicopter industry.

The total volume of new orders at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 4,013, a slight increase of 1.3%
compared to the previous year-end (€mil. 3,963). New orders break down into 69.3% for helicopters
(new helicopters and upgrading) and 30.7% for product support (spare parts and inspections),
engineering and manufacturing. The increase is largely due to the launch of the new AW169 and
AWI189 models in the market, which received orders for 98 units in 2012. Among the most
important new orders of the period received in the military-government segment there are the
following:
e the supply of integrated operational support services for the Sea King British fleet (SKIOS
programme) (Q4);
e the supply of seven AW139 helicopters to the Swedish Maritime Administration for Search
and Rescue operations (Q4);
e three AW139 units, configured for medical emergency, search and rescue, law enforcement
and homeland security missions, for the Maryland State Police Aviation Command (Q3);

o one AW139 helicopter for the Policia do Brasil (Q3);
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e six AW Super Lynx 300 helicopters for a key customer in the southern Mediterranean area
(Q2);

o five AWI1609 units for a United Arab Emirates governmental customer (Q2);

e two law enforcement-configured AW139 helicopters for the Japanese National Police
Agency (Q1);

e one AWI109 helicopter to the Chilean military police (Q1).

The most important new orders in the civil-government segment include:

e the supply of seven AW139 and two AW189 helicopters to the Azerbaijan Airlines for
medical emergency services, for VIP transportation, for Search and Rescue operations and
offshore transportation (Q4);

e the supply of two AW169 and one AW139 helicopters to the Kaan Air company for the VIP
/ Corporate transportation missions (Q4);

e the contract with Heli One to supply four AW 139 helicopters (Q3);

e the supply of fifteen AW139 helicopters in the off-shore configuration to Gulf Helicopters to
provide support for oil rigs in the Middle East (Q1);

e the supply of five AW169 helicopters to the air rescue services provider, Inaer Aviation

Spain (Q1).

The value of the order backlog at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 11,876, showing a decrease
compared to 31 December 2011 (€mil. 12,121). The order backlog breaks down into 67% for
helicopters (new helicopters and upgrading), 33% for product support (spare parts and inspections),

engineering and industrial production. This amount ensures around 2.5 years of production.

Revenues at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 4,243, up by 8.4% compared to 31 December 2011
(€mil. 3,915), largely due to the significant growth in certain helicopter production segments

(AW101 and AW139).

Adjusted EBITA at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 473, up (+13.4%) compared to 31 December
2011 (€mil. 417). This improvement is partially due to the above-mentioned increase in production
volumes and partly to the streamlining and restructuring initiatives rolled out at the end of last year.
Accordingly, ROS increased (up 0.4 percentage points) to 11.1% from 10.7% for the period ended
31 December 2011.

In 2012, research and development costs came to €mil. 506 (€472 in 2011) and mainly related to

the development of:
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e technologies, primarily for military use, for a new 8 tonne class helicopter named AW 149;
e multi-role versions of the AW609 convertiplane for national security which is fully owned
by and under the full responsibility of AgustaWestland;
e a 4.5t twin-engine helicopter (AW 169).
Technology research programmes principally comprise activities concerning the European Clean

Sky and ALICIA projects.

The workforce at 31 December 2012 came to 13,050, down by net 253 employees on the 13,303

employees at 31 December 2011. This is mainly due to:

e the restructuring plan at the British site of Yeovil, which was fully funded by the British
Ministry of Defence, with the laying off of 375 employees at 31 December 2012;

e the outsourcing of certain non-core activities of the Polish site of Swidnik.

28



DEFENCE AND SECURITY ELECTRONICS

€ million

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

New orders 5,136 4917
Order backlog 8,831 9,591
Revenues 5,754 6,035
Adjusted EBITA 384 303
ROS 6.7% 5.0%
Research and development 732 823
Workforce (no.) 25,183 27,314

Finmeccanica operates in the Defence and Security Electronics industry through the SELEX ES
Group and the DRS Technologies (DRS) group.

The division covers activities relating to the creation of major integrated defence and security
systems based on complex architectures and network-centric techniques; the provision of integrated
products, services and support for military Forces and government Agencies; supplying avionics and
electro-optical equipment and systems; unmanned aircraft, radar systems, land and naval command
and control systems, air traffic control systems, integrated communications systems and networks for
land, naval, satellite and avionic applications; activities for private mobile radio communications

systems, value-added services and IT and security activities.

Security, also including the protection against threats deriving from the unauthorised use of digital
information and communications systems (cyber security), has become one of the priority issues of
governments and decision makers. Leveraging their distinctive expertise, the companies have
developed an offering of products and services for government and civil security operators aiming
the protection of critical and strategic infrastructures and locations, while paying particular attention
to issues related to the security of telecommunications networks and IT systems that are the crucial

core on which the modern digital economy is based.
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New orders at 31 December 2012 totalled €mil. 5,136, up by the figure posted for the same period

of the previous year (€mil. 4,917). Key new orders in the various segments include:

avionics and electro-optical systems: orders for the EFA programme, specifically avionics
equipment and radars for the third lot, as well as logistics (Q1-2-3-4); the order for activities
related to the fixed and mobile component of the ground-based part of a surface-to-air
surveillance system forming part of NATO’s Alliance Ground Surveillance programme (Q2);
orders for various space programmes and, specifically, as part of the Aurora Exomars and
Galileo programmes (Q1-2-3-4); orders for countermeasure systems (Q1-2-3); orders for the
NH90 helicopter programme (Q1-2-3-4); the order from SAAB for development activities of
the active electronic-scan radar of the Gripen NG multirole fighter (Q2); the order from the
Italian Navy for the ground station supporting ATOS surveillance systems on the ATR 72
aircraft as part of its P72A programme (Q1); the order for Unmanned Aerial Vehicle systems
for a foreign country (Q1); the order from the British Ministry of Defence for the supply of
electro-optical turrets for the fleet of Chinooks (Q2); the order to upgrade the laser targeting
capability of the Apache helicopters used by the US army (Q2); customer support (Q1-2-3-4);
major integrated defence and security systems: the further lot of the contract with the Ttalian
Ministry of Defence to raise the level of protection at Italian operating and support bases in
Afghanistan (Q3);

command and control systems in the defence systems area: the order from the Italian Navy to
implement the TESEO system on Orizzonte vessels (Q1); orders for the Medium Extended Air
Defence System programme (Q1); the order from the Indian navy to supply a RAN 40L ship-
detection radar (Q2). In the civil systems area: contracts with Uruguay’s Civil Aviation
Department and the Royal Bahraini Air Force for the supply of primary and secondary radar
systems to control and manage air and airport traffic (Q2); the order to upgrade the control tower
at Kuala Lumpur’s airport in Malaysia (Q3); the contract with the National Centre for Natural
Disaster Monitoring and Alerts (Centro Nacional de Monitoramento e Alertas de Desastres
Naturais) in Brazil for the supply of nine weather radars (Q4); the order from the Aeronautical

Radio of Thailand for the supply of six secondary radars, civil works and radio devices (Q4);

e integrated communication networks and systems: the order from NATO to develop, implement

and manage the Computer Incident Response Capability - Full Operating Capability programme
to protect data from threats and weaknesses as part of cyber security at numerous NATO
command centres and locations in various countries (Q1); the order, as part of NATO’s above-
mentioned Alliance Ground Surveillance programme, to supply the broadband data link (Q2);
further orders in the EFA programme to supply various communications devices (Q1-2-3-4);

orders for communications systems for helicopter platforms (Q1-2-3-4); orders for
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communications systems of the VBM and VTMM vehicles from the Italian Army (Q2-3-4); the
order, as part of a cooperation agreement between the Italian and Israeli Governments, for the
supply of identification and communication systems and flight control computers for Alenia
Aermacchi’s M346 training aircraft and, via ELTA Systems Ltd, communication subsystems
(NATO standard), tactical data links and identification systems for two Conformal Airborne
Early Warning aircraft for the Italian Air Force (Q3); the order for the supply of radio jammers
for the Italian Directorate General for Land Weapons Systems (Direzione Generale Armamenti
Terrestri) (Q4); the order for a tactical transmission system for the German Army (Q4); the
order from Ansaldo STS to supply the communication system for the Shah-Habshan-Ruwais
railway section in the United Arab Emirates (Q2); the order from ENAV for the supply and
installation of Ground Stations aimed at implementing and upgrading the data link system for
aircraft (Q4);

e information technology and security: the order to develop and manage the Ministry of
Education, University and Research’s IT system (Q1); further orders from the Russian postal
service to supply systems for their revenue protection programme (Q1-4); the order for
maintenance and technical assistance services for Poste Italiane S.p.A.’s mail sorting lines and
equipment (Q2-3); the order for the turnkey supply of the postal sorting centre in Budapest
(Q4); orders for various system and software support initiatives for the Ministry of Justice (Q3);

e DRS: the order to supply modular fuel tanks for the US Army’s Modular Fuel System (Q1); the
order from the US Navy to supply electronic security services to the Space and Naval Warfare
Systems Command (Q2); further orders to supply Thermal Weapon Sight vision systems used
by the US Armed Forces (Q1-2); additional orders for the upgrade of the target acquisition sub-
systems of the Bradley fighting vehicles (Q1-2-3); orders for support, technical assistance and
logistics services for the Mast Mounted Sight vision system for OH-58D Kiowa Warrior
helicopters (Q1-4); additional options to the contract in order to provide logistics support to the
fleet of E6-B aircraft of the U.S. Navy (Q1-2-3-4); orders to supply satellite communication
services as part of the Future Commercial Satellite Communications Services Acquisition

programme (Q2-3).

At 31 December 2012, the orders backlog came to €mil. 8,831, compared to €mil. 9,591 at 31
December 2011. Around 80% of this amount related to operations of European companies active in

the sector.

At 31 December 2012, revenues came to €mil. 5,754, with a €mil. 281 decrease over the
corresponding period of the previous year (€mil. 6,035), which was mitigated by the appreciation of

the US dollar and the pound sterling against the Euro. This trend was seen across all lines of the
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segment, due to the generalised difficulties and the slow-down in purchases and start-up of new
orders, worsened by the simultaneous decrease in the contribution of important programmes now in
their final stages. This includes the decreased activities for the US Armed Forces, as substantially
expected, and the drop in production volumes in the command and control systems and, to a lesser
extent, the avionics and information technology and security lines, which were also impacted by the
freezing of the Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea’s SISTRI programme (see Note 23).

This is also confirmed by new orders/revenues ratio of less than one, like in 2011. The sluggish

demand in this business segment will impact its growth in the coming year.
Revenues in the various lines were mainly generated by:

e avionics and electro-optical systems: the continuation of activities relating to Defensive Aids
Sub-System production and the production of avionics equipment and radar for the EFA
programme; countermeasure systems; equipment for the helicopter and space programmes;
combat and surveillance radar for other fixed-wing platforms; customer support and logistics;

e major integrated defence and security systems: continuation of the Forza NEC programme;
progress on activities related to the Phase 2 Coastal Radar programme; activities related to the
Panama Maritime Security System programme;

e command and control systems: the continuation of activities relating to air traffic control
programmes, in Italy and abroad; contracts for FREMM and upgrading Italian Navy vessels; the
programme to supply combat systems for the Algerian logistic support amphibious vessel;
progress in the Medium Extended Air Defence System international cooperation programme;
progress on the programme to supply Fixed Air Defence Radar ground radar for the domestic
customer; progress on the supply of fighting systems for vessels for various foreign customers;

e integrated communications systems and networks, the development and manufacture of
equipment for EFA and helicopter platforms; the provision of communication systems for the
military both in Italy and the UK; the continuation of activities relating to the FREMM
programme and to the construction of the national TETRA network;

e information technology and security: activities relating to postal and industrial automation
services both in Italy and abroad, to monitoring and physical security for domestic customers
and ICT services for government agencies;

e DRS: the additional supply of Thermal Weapon Sight system issued to soldiers as sight device;
additional deliveries for programmes to upgrade the target acquisition sub-systems for Bradley
fighting vehicles; activity pertaining to the repair and provision of spare parts for the Mast

Mounted Sight system for helicopters; the continuation of deliveries of rugged computers and
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displays, particularly for the Joint Battle Command - Platform programme (JBC-P); provision of

services and products for the Rapid Response contract and satellite communications services.

At 31 December 2012, Adjusted EBITA came to €mil. 384, showing an increase compared to 31
December 2011 (€mil. 303), mainly due to the negative effect of some “extraordinary” events, which
were recorded at the end of the previous financial year. These events related to the review of the
assumptions of development and competitiveness in various areas of activity in the segments of
major integrated defence and security systems and command and control systems. Beyond this
situation, Adjusted EBITDA was affected by the abovementioned drop in production volumes, as
well as by the continuing difficulties in the command and control systems line and in some areas of
activity of the information technology and security line, which were partially offset by savings
generated by the plans underway to improve competitiveness and efficiency and for restructuring.

ROS, consequently, was 6.7%, higher compared to the value recorded at 31 December 2011 (5.0%).

The sector was affected by the implementation of competitiveness, streamlining and restructuring
plans, as well as by the integration of the European businesses into a single company, aimed at
developing, within the set timeframes, a significantly streamlining technologies, product lines and
industrial facilities. This entity will operate in conjunction and in coordination with DRS (which will
not be affected by the business combination given the special regulations to which it is subject). The
single entity will be able to successfully take on key industry players, compete on the main markets
and take advantage of a technological, financial and production structure that will make it possible to

generate significant cash flows and an adequate return on invested capital.

Research and development costs at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 732 (compared to €mil. 823

at 31 December 2011) and mainly relates to:

e avionics and electro-optical systems segment: development for the EFA programme; new
systems and sensors for Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (UAV); new electronic-scan radar systems
for both surveillance and combat; improvements to avionics suites to satisfy the demands of the
new fixed and rotary-wing platforms;

e major integrated defence and security systems and command and control systems segments: the
continuation of activities for the upgrading of the current SATCAS products; the programme to
develop capabilities and technologies for architectural design and construction of major systems
for the integrated management of operations by armed ground forces (Combined Warfare
Proposal); on naval combat systems; the completion of activities for the Kronos 3D surveillance

radar and the active multifunctional MFRA;
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e integrated communication systems and networks segment: the development of TETRA
technology products and software defined radio products; satellite receivers and the ground
network for the Galileo PRS programme and communication intelligence solutions; specific

functionalities for advanced Unmanned Airborne Systems.

At 31 December 2012, the workforce numbered 25,183, down by a net 2,131 on the 27,314
employees at 31 December 2011, attributable to the on-going reorganization process of various

segments, particularly at DRS.
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AERONAUTICS

€ million 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

New orders 3,169 2,919
Order backlog 8,819 8,656
Revenues 2,974 2,670
Adjusted EBITA 104 (903)
ROS 3.5% 34)%
Research and development 310 326

Workforce (no.) 11,708 11,993

The Aeronautics division includes Alenia Alenia Aermacchi SpA (production of military aircraft for
combat, transport, special missions and training, as well as civil applications such as regional
turboprop aircraft, aerostructures and engine nacelles) and its subsidiaries, including: Alenia
Aermacchi North America Inc., operating in the US market through a joint venture and GIE-ATR
(final assembly and marketing of ATR aircraft), and SuperJet International SpA (sale and assistance
for Superjet aircraft) joint ventures, which are consolidated on a proportional basis at 50% and 51%,

respectively.

New orders at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 3,169, up by €mil. 250 (+8.6%) compared to 31
December 2011 (€mil. 2,919). The increase was due to increased orders in the military segment,
related to EFA, M346 and C27J programmes, which more than offset the drop in the civil line, which

had experienced significant orders of ATR aircraft in 2011.

The main orders received in 2012 included the following:
e in the military segment:

o for the EFA programme, the contract to supply technical-logistics services for five years.
This order forms part of a broader contract agreed by the Eurofighter consortium with
NETMA to support the fleet of aircraft of the programme’s four partner nations: Italy,
Germany, Spain and the United Kingdom (Q1);
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0 for the M346 programme, the order for the supply of 30 training aircraft to the Israeli Air
Force, which was signed in July as part of a cooperation agreement between the Italian and
Israeli governments;

o for the C27] programme: the order for ten aircraft for the Australian Air Force via a
Foreign Military Sales agreement with the government of the United States, with the
contract awarded to the partnership between L-3 - as prime contractor - and Alenia
Aermacchi (Q2);

0 for the Maritime Patrol version of the ATR 72 aircraft, the additional order for logistical
support for the four aircraft under production ordered by the Italian Air Force in 2008 for

maritime patrol (Q1);

e in the civil segment:

0 for the ATR aircraft, GIE-ATR received new orders for 74 aircraft (59 in the fourth
quarter), from various airlines, 20 of which from Malaysia Airlines (Q4), 15 from the
Colombian Avianca Taca Airline (Q4), 9 from Taiwan TransAsia Airways (Q2-4), 7 from
the Australian Sky West Airlines (Q4) and 8 from the Irish Aer Arann Airlines (Q4);

0 for aerostructures, orders for additional lots of the B767, B777, A380, ATR and A321

programmes and for engine nacelles (Q1-2-3-4).

The order backlog at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 8,819 (€mil. 8,656 at 31 December 2011)
and is expected to continue expanding over the medium/long term. The breakdown revealed a
significant portion for the EFA (36%), B787 (15%), ATR, (17%), M346 (9%) and C27J (6%)

programmes.

Revenues at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 2,974, up by €mil. 304 (+11.4%) compared to 31
December 2011 (€mil. 2,670), due to increased operations in the civil segment and, in particular, to
the increased production rates for the B787, ATR, A380 and A321 aircraft. In the military segment,
revenues were essentially in line with the previous year, due to increased activities for EFA (supply
of equipment and logistics activities), M346 and ATR special version aircraft, which offset the

reduced production rates of transport aircraft (C27J and G222).

Adjusted EBITA at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 104 compared to a negative value of €mil.
903 at 31 December 2011, which included considerable “extraordinary” charges totalling €mil. 800,
€mil. 753 of which related to the B787 programme. Excluding these “extraordinary” events, the final
result posted at 31 December 2012 showed an improvement of €mil. 207 compared to the

corresponding period of the previous year and was mainly attributable to:
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e  higher volumes of activities (€mil. 36);

e increase in profitability (€Emil. 89), mainly attributable to the renegotiation of trade agreements
and to the higher contribution from some programmes (A380, Falcon, ATR special version and
transport aircraft), which recorded higher costs for the completion of some supplies in 2011;

e the improvement in industrial efficiency as a result of the on-going restructuring and
reorganization plan, the reduction in operating costs and the benefits arising from streamlining
the supply chain (€mil. 82).

Accordingly, ROS came to 3.5% compared to a negative value recorded at 31 December 2011.

In 2012, research and development expenses came to €mil. 310 (€mil. 326 at 31 December 2012)
and comprise the progress made on the main programmes under development: M346, C27J, B787
basic version, and Unmanned Aerial Vehicles and in activities related to innovative aerostructures
using composite materials and system integration. Development also continued on important military

(EFA, AMX and Neuron) and civil (CSeries and B787-9 derivative version) programmes.

The workforce at 31 December 2012 was 11,708, down a net 285 employees on the 11,993

employees at 31 December 2011. This is due, inter alia, to:

e the final hiring of 472 employees, former temporary workers, as per the agreement reached with
the trade unions on 8 November 2011;

e the carly retirement incentive and redundancy scheme of 620 employees as part of the

restructuring and business reorganisation underway.
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SPACE

€ million 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

New orders 866 919

Order backlog 2,261 2,465
Revenues 1,053 1,001
Adjusted EBITA 84 18

ROS 8.0% 1.8%
Research and development 53 77
Workforce (no.) 4,131 4,139

Finmeccanica operates in the space industry through the Space Alliance between Finmeccanica and
Thales through two joint ventures dedicated, respectively, to satellite services (Telespazio S.p.A., in
which Finmeccanica S.p.a. holds 67% and Thales SAS 33%) and to manufacturing (Thales Alenia
Space SAS, which is based in France and has its main industrial facilities in France, Italy, Belgium

and Spain, in which Finmeccanica Spa holds 33% and Thales SAS 67%).

Telespazio focuses on satellite services in the following segments: networks and connectivity (fixed
and mobile telecommunications services, network services, TV, defence and security services, value-
added services); satellite operations (in-orbit satellite control, telemetry services, command and
control and Launch and Early Operation Phase services, operational management of infrastructures
and systems for satellite communications and television broadcasting); satellite systems and
applications (earth centre design, development and management, consulting and engineering
services, development of navigation, training and meteorology applications) and geoinformation
(data, thematic maps, operational services, monitoring services and territorial surveillance).

Thales Alenia Space focuses on manufacturing (design, development and production) in the
following segments: telecommunications satellites (commercial, government and military), scientific
programmes, earth observation systems (optical and radar), satellite navigation, orbital

infrastructures and transport systems, equipment and devices.
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New orders at 31 December 2012 totalled €mil. 866, down by approximately 6% compared to 31
December 2011 (€mil. 919). This decrease mainly related to the postponement of the order relating
to the acquisition of the Cosmo 2G contract, which was expected in the latter period of 2012. The
most significant new orders for the period relate to the following segments:

e in the commercial telecommunications segment, the contract with the satellite operator Arabsat
for the implementation of the payload of the BADR-7 sixth-generation satellite (Q4); contracts
for the supply of the Turkmensat and Eutelsat 8 West B satellites (Q3); new orders for TV
satellite capacity and services (Q1-2) and satellite telecommunications services (Q1-2-3);

e in the military telecommunications segment, additional lots of the order from the Italian Space
Agency and the French Space Agency (CNES) for the Athena Fidus satellite (Q1) and orders for
military satellite telecommunications services (Q1-2-3);

e in the earth observation segment, additional lots of the order for third-generation Meteosat
satellites (Q1-2); the order for the supply of the OPSAT - 3000 optical satellite system (Q3);
orders for Cosmo data and stations and for GeoEye data (Q1-2-3);

e in the satellite navigation segment: the order related to the Egnos programme (Q1);

e in the science programmes segment: an additional lot for the Bepi-Colombo (Q1) and Exomars

(Q1-2-3) programmes.

The order backlog at 31 December 2012 totalled €mil. 2,261, a decrease of €mil. 204 from the
figure at 31 December 2011 (€mil. 2,465). The backlog at 31 December 2012 is composed of

manufacturing activities (58%) and satellite services (42%).

In 2012, revenues came to €mil. 1,053, an increase of €mil. 52 compared to the corresponding
period of the previous year (€mil. 1,001). Production, broken down for 65% to manufacturing and

for 35% to services, mainly relates to the continuation of activities in the following segments:

e in the commercial telecommunications segment for the Russian AM8/AT1&AT2, Yamal- 401
and 402 satellites and payloads; for the O3B and Iridium NEXT satellite constellations; for the
provision of satellite telecommunications services and the resale of satellite capacity;

e in the military telecommunications segment for the Sicral 2 and Athena Fidus satellite and for
the provision of military satellite telecommunications services;

e in the earth observation segment for the satellites for the Sentinel mission (Kopernikus
programme, previously known as GMES); for the Goktiirk satellite system for the Turkish
Ministry of Defence; for the third-generation Meteosat constellation;

e in the science programmes segment for the Exomars and Bepi-Colombo programmes;
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e in the satellite navigation segment for the ground mission segment of the Galileo programme

and activities related to the Egnos programme.

Adjusted EBITA at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 84 compared to €mil. 18 recorded at 31
December 2011, which included “extraordinary” charges totalling €mil. 50 due only to the satellite
services segment. Excluding these “extraordinary” events, the final result posted at 31 December
2012 showed an improvement of €mil. 16 compared to the corresponding period of the previous year
and was attributable to the abovementioned higher volumes for €mil. 6 and to the benefits from
efficiency-improvement actions started in 2012, for the remaining €mil. 10. Accordingly, ROS

amounted to 8.0%, compared to 1.8% recorded at 31 December 2011.

In 2012, research and development costs came to €mil. 53, a decrease of €mil. 24 from the figure
posted in the corresponding period of the previous year (€mil. 77).

Activities in this area largely included the continued development of systems, solutions and
applications for security, emergency management, homeland security (Kopernikus programme) and
for navigation/infomobility services (Galileo programme); aerial communications solutions
(SESAR); solutions for optimising the satellite band; processing systems for earth observation SAR
data; flexible payload devices for military communications applications; studies on landing systems

for planetary exploration and on technologies for orbiting structures and life-support systems.

The workforce at 31 December 2012 came to 4,131, essentially in line with the value of employees
reported at 31 December 2011 (4,139 units).
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DEFENCE SYSTEMS

€ million 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

New orders 1,005 1,044
Order backlog 3,381 3,656
Revenues 1,256 1,223
Adjusted EBITA 164 117

ROS 13.1% 9.6%
Research and development 257 247

Workforce (no.) 3,963 4,066

The Defence Systems division includes the activities of MBDA, the joint venture with BAE Systems
and EADS in which Finmeccanica Spa holds a 25% stake, in missile systems, Oto Melara group in
land, sea and air weapons systems and WASS S.p.A. in underwater weapons (torpedoes and

countermeasures) and sonar systems.

New orders at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 1,005, a slight decrease over €mil. 1,044 figure at
31 December 2011, due to lower purchases of missile systems and underwater systems, which were
affected by the postponement of important contracts, both domestic and export and which were
offset by the increase in the land weapon systems segment, due to a significant order for the supply
of additional MA Vs to the Italian Army. Key new orders of the reporting period include:

e in the missile systems segment: the order to supply Mica air-to-air missiles as part of the
upgrade of the Mirage 2000 fleet used by the Indian Air Force (Q1); an order for naval air
defence systems in Eastern Europe (Q4); an important contract from domestic customers for
support activities within the air defence programme Aster (Q3); customer support orders (Q1-2-
3-4);

e in the land, sea and air weapons system segment: the order for an additional lot of MAVs to the
Italian Army (Q2-4); the acquisition of the contract for two 127/64 LW naval cannons from

Algeria (Q3); the orders for four 76/62 SR naval cannons and eight Marlin 30mm machine gun
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systems from Oman (Q4); an additional contract related to the Forza NEC programme for the

Italian Army (Q4) and logistics orders from various customers;

e in the underwater systems segment, orders related to the FREMM programme from France
(Q2) and various logistics orders, as well as other minor contracts in the business areas of

heavy and light torpedoes and countermeasures.

The order backlog at 31December 2012 came to €mil. 3,381, compared to €mil. 3,656 at 31

December 2011, of which about 63% related to missile systems.

Revenues at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 1,256, up by about 3% compared to 31 December
2011 (€mil. 1,223), essentially recorded in the underwater systems line. Revenues were the result of
the following activities in the various segments:

e in the missile systems segment: activities for the production of Aster surface-to-air missiles,
Spada air defence missile systems and Exocet anti-ship missiles; the first deliveries of air-to-
surface missiles as part of an important programme for a foreign country; activities relating to
the development of the air defence system in connection with the Medium Extended Air
Defence System programme; customer support;

e in the land, sea and air weapons systems segment: production of MAVs for the Italian Army;
Hitfist turrets kits for Poland; FREMM programme activities; production of SampT missile
launchers; the production of machine guns for various foreign customers and logistics;

e in the underwater systems segment: activities relating to the Black Shark heavy torpedo and the
A244 light torpedoes and to countermeasures; activities relating to the FREMM programme and

logistics.

Adjusted EBITA at 31 December 2012 totalled €mil. 164, up on the figure reported for 31
December 2011 (€mil. 117), mainly due to the considerable improvement in the profit margins in
underwater systems segment, which, however, in the latter part of the previous year, reflected the
impact of some “exceptional” events related to the deterioration in relationships with certain
counterparties and to higher costs on a programme, and in missile systems segment, which benefitted,
in particular, from the start of the deliveries on an important export programme and from successful
achievement of some technical milestones. Accordingly, ROS came to 13.1% (9.6% at 31 December

2011).

Research and development costs at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 257, 4% higher compared to
€mil. 247 recorded at 31 December 2011. Key activities included: in the missile systems line,

activities for the Medium Extended Air Defence System programmes and activities for the
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development programmes for the UK Ministry of Defence, as well as the continuation of
development of the Meteor air-to-air missile; in the land, sea and air weapons systems segment,
activities for guided ammunition programmes and for the development of the 127/64 LW gun; in the
underwater systems segment, activities relating to the A244 light torpedo and the Black Shark heavy

torpedo.

The workforce at 31 December 2012 came to 3,963, down by 103 employees on the 4,066
employees at 31 December 2011.
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ENERGY

€ million 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

)

New orders 834 1,258

Order backlog 1,978 1,939

Revenues 715 981

Adjusted EBITA 65 91

ROS. 9.1% 9.3%

Research and development 17 23

Workforce (no.) 1,830 1,872

(*) 2011, financial data and orders included 100% consolidation of Ansaldo Energia up to the date of the
partial transfer to First Reserve (13 June 2011). After such date, this Group was consolidated on a
proportional basis (55%). In order to provide an accurate picture of the division’s performance, changes in
income statement items will each time be reported on a like-for-like basis of accounting for the periods

compared.

Finmeccanica is active in the Energy division through Ansaldo Energia S.p.A. (55% Joint Venture)
and its investees, Ansaldo Nucleare S.p.A., Asia Power Projects Private Ltd, Ansaldo Swiss AG, the

Ansaldo Thomassen group and Yeni Aen Insaat Anonim Sirteki.

The Energy division specialises in providing plants and components for generating electricity
(conventional thermal, combined-cycle and simple-cycle, cogeneration and geothermal power
plants), post-sale service, nuclear activities (plant engineering, service, waste and decommissioning)

and services related to power generation from renewable energy resources.

New orders at 31 December 2012 amounted to €mil. 834, down by €mil. 424 over the €mil. 1,258
figure of the corresponding period of the previous year. Using a like-for-like basis of accounting,
new orders decreased by €mil. 65, mainly due to lower orders in the service segment. Key new

orders of the reporting period include:
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in the plants and components segment: an open-cycle plant in Algeria (Hassi Messaud) (Q2);
supply of a gas turbine and alternator in Algeria (Labreg) (Q2); supply of two steam turbines and
alternators in Chile (Cochrane) (Q2-Q4); the supply of a steam turbine and alternator in Egypt
(Giza North) (Q3); supply of a combined-cycle plant in Tunisia (Sousse D) (Q4); supply of two
alternators in Italy (Codrogianus) (Q4); supply of four gas turbines and related alternators in
Russia (Moscow and Saint Petersburg) (Q4);

in the service segment: the solution contract (changing parts of the turbine) related to the
revamping of the nuclear turbo alternator for a power station in Argentina (Embalse) (Q1); the
Long Term Service Agreement (LTSA) related to the combined-cycle plant in Tunisia (Sousse
D) (Q4); various contracts for spare parts and field service operations;

in the nuclear segment: the plant engineering order in Argentina (Embalse) (Q1); the order for
the full-scale prototype of the divertor’s inner vertical target for a nuclear power station in
France (Cardache) (Q2); the supply of emergency diesel generators, related components and

services for the nuclear plant in Embalse, in Argentina (Q4).

The order backlog at 31 December 2012 totalled €mil. 1,978, up by €mil. 39 over the €mil. 1,939 at
31 December 2011. The composition of the backlog is attributable for 41% to plants and

components, 56% to service activities (72% of which is represented by long-term service agreements

- LTSAs - for scheduled maintenance contracts) and the remaining 3% to nuclear.

Revenues at 31 December 2012 amounted to €mil. 715, a decrease of €mil. 266 from the €mil. 981

reported for 2011. Using the same basis of accounting, revenues decreased by €mil. 13, attributable

to lower operations in the plants and component line. Revenues were mainly generated by the

following activities:

in the plant and components segment: orders from Italy (Aprilia), Tunisia (Sousse), Egypt (El
Sabtia — Cairo, Giza North), Turkey (Gebze) and Algeria (Ain Djasser II, Labreg and Hassi
Messaud);

in the services segment: LTSAs in Italy (Servola, Rizziconi, Ferrara, Naples, Sparanise, various
Enipower facilities), in Poland (Rzeszow) and in Northern Ireland (Ballylumford ); in the spare
part area, the activities on the gas and steam turbines in Spain (Algeciras and Escatron), Jordan
(Amman-East), Bolivia (Carrasco), Turkey, Algeria (Hamma, Batna) and in Greece (Chania);
activities in Italy (Ravenna, Ferrera and Mantua) and in Chile (Mejillones) in the field service
area;

in the nuclear segment: in the plant engineering area, activities continued on the Sanmen project

in China with Westinghouse for the new AP1000 nuclear reactors and engineering activities on
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the Slovakia power station to complete the two VVER 440 reactors (Mochovce). In the services
area, revamping activities at the power station in Argentina (Embalse). In the waste and
decommissioning area, note the activities on the nuclear power plant in Ignalina in Lithuania and
the treatment and storage of radioactive waste from submarines in Russia (Andreeva Bay);

e in the renewable energy segment: in the wind segment, note the activity relating to the order
from Avellino (Bisaccia) for construction of a 66 MW wind farm; in the photovoltaic area,
progress on the orders relating to Siracusa (Francofonte), Avellino (Bisaccia), Lecce (Martano

and Soleto) and L.’ Aquila (Pratola).

Adjusted EBITA at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 65, down by €mil. 26 over the €mil. 91 at 31
December 2011. Using the same basis of accounting, Adjusted EBITA showed a decrease of €mil. 7
compared to the previous year, mainly due to lower production volumes and lower industrial
profitability in plants and components and service lines. At 31 December 2012, ROS was 9.1%,
compared to 9.3% at 31 December 2011.

Research and development costs at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 17, down by €mil. 6
compared to the previous year (€mil. 23). Using the same basis of accounting, there were no

substantial changes with respect to the corresponding period of the previous year.

The workforce at 31 December 2012 stood at 1,830, down by 42 employees on the 1,872 employees
at 31 December 2011.
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TRANSPORTATION

€ million 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

New orders 2,290 2,723

Order backlog 8,679 8,317
Revenues 1,719 1,877
Adjusted EBITA (67) (110)

ROS (3.9%) (5.9%)
Research and development 49 46
Workforce (no.) 6,568 6,876

The Transportation business segment comprises Ansaldo STS group (signalling and transportation

solutions), AnsaldoBreda S.p.A. and its investees (vehicles) and BredaMenarinibus S.p.A. (buses).

New orders at 31 December 2012 totalled €mil. 2,290, down by €mil. 433 compared to the previous
year (€mil. 2,723). This decrease mainly related to the lower purchases in signalling and
transportation solutions line, which, in 2011, benefitted, in particular, from the recording of the
important order for the construction, operation and maintenance of the new automated metro system
in Honolulu.

Key new orders of the reporting period include:

e for the signalling and transportation solutions line:

0 in the signalling area: the order for the first two stages of a signalling system for the train
line for heavy traffic use for the Roy Hill Iron Ore project in Australia (Q2); the contract
agreed with South-eastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority for the Positive Train
Control integrated signalling system (Q1); the order for the High Speed/ High Capacity
Line between Treviglio and Brescia stations (Q4); the order for the new Shah-Habshan-
Ruwais line in the United Arab Emirates (Q1); the contract for the supply of the railway
traffic control system for a high-speed line in Korea (Q3); the order for the development of
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the computer-based interlocking system (Apparato Centrale Computerizzato, ACC) of
Brescia Central station (Q4); various components and service & maintenance contracts;

0 in the transportation solutions area, the AutoHaul™ contract to develop and supply an
automated train management system for the heavy transport of the iron ore for Rio Tinto
Iron Ore, awarded as part of the master agreement signed with Rio Tinto Iron Ore (Q2),
other contracts under the same master agreement, in Australia, and changes relating to the
automated metro system project in Copenhagen, named Cityringen;

e in the vehicles line, the order for the supply of vehicles for the Miami metro system (Q4); the
contract for the supply of vehicles for line 1 and 2 of the Milan metro system (Q4); the change
to Trenitalia’s 2010 order for high-speed trains (Q2); additional vehicles that had already been
optioned for the Fortaleza metro system in Brazil (Q2); service orders;

e in the bus line, orders for nineteen buses and various post-sales orders.

At 31 December 2012, the order backlog, totalled €mil. 8,679, up by €mil. 362 compared to 31
December 2011 (€mil. 8,317). The signalling and transportation solutions line accounts for 64.9%,
the vehicles line for 34.9% and the bus line for 0.2%.

At 31 December 2012, revenues came to €mil. 1,719, down by €mil. 158 compared to 2011 (€mil.

1,877). This decrease mainly related to lower revenues from vehicles and buses segments, which

were partially offset by the increased activities in the signalling and transportation solutions

segment. In particular, revenues were generated by the following orders:

e for the signalling and transportation solutions line:

0 in the signalling area, high-speed projects, train control systems and the Turin-Padua stretch
in Italy; contracts for the Bogazkopru-Ulukisla-Yenice and Mersin-Toprakkale railway lines
and for the Ankara metro in Turkey; orders for Australian Rail Track in Australia; the
contract for the Red Line of the Stockholm metro in Sweden; the order related to the Shah-
Habshan-Ruwais line, in the United Arab Emirates; the Union Pacific Railroad project in the
US; various components contracts;

0 in the transportation solutions area, the Copenhagen, Rome Line C, Naples Line 6, Milan,
Brescia, Genoa, Milan and Riyadh (Saudi Arabia) metros; the Rio Tinto projects in
Australia;

e in the vehicles line, double-decker carriages for Trenitalia; trains for the Danish railways; high-
speed trains for Trenitalia; trains for the Dutch and Belgian railways; vehicles for the Fortaleza
(Brazil), Milan and Riyadh (Saudi Arabia) metros;

e in the bus line, various bus orders, representing 56% of this line’s revenues, and post-sales

activities.
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At 31 December 2012, Adjusted EBITA was negative for €mil. 67, up by €mil. 43 compared to the
value recorded at 31 December 2011 (negative for €mil. 110).

It should be noted that, at 31 December 2011, Adjusted EBITA included an “extraordinary”
provision in the vehicles segment to cover risks related to “non-quality costs” (€mil. 47); excluding
this impact, at 31 December 2012, Adjusted EBITA in the sector showed a reduction of €mil. 4
compared to the previous year, mainly due to the vehicles segment. Therefore, at 31 December 2012,
this sector showed profitability which was still negative and lower than the expected performance,
and which was affected, in particular, by losses in profits in the service area.

The buses segment also showed a decrease (€mil. 3), compared to 2011, in production volumes,
which were significantly lower than the previous year and the expected performance (due to lack of
new orders), whereas the signalling and transportation solutions segment showed an increase, due to
higher production volumes and lower structure costs, which were partially offset by a negative effect
arising from the different composition of the activities developed during the reporting period.

Accordingly, ROS recorded a negative value of 3.9% (5.9% negative at 30 December 2011).

Research and development expenses at 31 December 2012 came to €mil. 49 (€mil. 46 at 31

December 2011) and mainly related to projects in the signalling and transportation solutions line.

The workforce at 31 December 2012 numbered 6,568, down by net 308 employees on the 6,876
employees at 31 December 2011. This relates to the vehicles line and to the signalling and

transportation solutions line.

49



OTHER ACTIVITIES

€ million

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

New orders 124 319
Order backlog 159 256
Revenues 347 305
Adjusted EBITA (127) (149)
ROS n.s n.s.
Research and development 5 6
Workforce (no.) 975 911

The business segment includes, inter alia, Finmeccanica Group Services S.p.A., which manages
group services, Finmeccanica Finance SA and Meccanica Holdings USA Inc., which provide the
Group with financial support, Finmeccanica Group Real Estate S.p.A. (FGRE), which manages,
streamlines and enhances the Group’s real estate assets, and So.Ge.Pa. S.p.A. in liquidation. It also
includes the FATA group, which provides plant and equipment for the processing of aluminium and

steel and contracting services to electricity generation and primary aluminium production companies.

At 31 December 2012, the FATA group had received new orders of €mil. 124, down €mil. 195
compared to the previous year (€mil. 319). At 31 December 2011, the FATA group was positively

affected by a large new order received from Oman.

At 31 December 2012, revenues totalled €mil. 221, up by €mil. 60 compared to 31 December 2011
(Emil. 161).

At 31 December 2012, the workforce numbered 469, compared to 346 employees at 31 December
2011.

This business segment’s figures also include Finmeccanica Spa, which has been undergoing an in-
depth transformation process for several years, redirecting its focus from financial to industrial
(guidance and coordination). This process was boosted in previous years by management’s

commitment to continue steps towards industrial, technological and commercial integration. The
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Group will, therefore, benefit from an additional stimulus to its profitability through streamlining and
cost-saving processes. These processes, aimed at reducing costs and which are progressing as
planned, also involved Finmeccanica Spa directly, which has benefitted significantly at 31 December

2012.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2012 AND EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO CLOSURE OF THE ACCOUNTS

Industrial transactions

In the Helicopters business segment, AgustaWestland signed an agreement on 18 September 2012
with the US-based Northrop Grumman Corporation to take part in the forthcoming tender of the US
Air Force for a new Combat Rescue Helicopter (CRH) and the future tender for the new presidential
helicopter Marine One (VXX) which is under the responsibility of the US Navy. The partnership
between AgustaWestland and Northrop Grumman brings together Finmeccanica’s leadership in the
rotary-wing sector and the US company’s long experience in the area of mission systems and

equipment integration on aircraft for the United States Department of Defense.

On 21 January 2013, AgustaWestland and Embraer announced that they had signed a Memorandum
of Understanding to set up a joint venture in order to produce the AgustaWestland helicopters in

Brazil (for military and commercial applications) intended for local and Latin America markets.

In the Aeronautics business segment, the merger of subsidiaries Alenia Aermacchi S.p.A. and

Alenia SIA S.p.A. by incorporation into Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. took effect on 1 January 2012.

On 17 January 2013, Alenia Aermacchi and General Dynamics signed a Letter of Intent that ratifies
the partnership of the two companies in the tender for the supply of the future advanced trainer to the
US Air Force (T — X programme). The two companies will offer the customer an integrated training
system for pilots based on Alenia Aermacchi's T-100 platform, which is a variation of the M-346
advanced trainer in the US market. General Dynamics will play the role of Prime Contractor —
through the C4 Systems business unit— and will share with the team its proven experience as a
system integrator in order to deliver to the customer: aircraft, flight simulators, multimedia training

courses and logistics support.

The programme to upgrade Finmeccanica’s industrial structure in the Defence and Security
Electronics (“D&SE”) business segment, which was launched as early as 2010, continued with the
corporate streamlining process, in response to the new strategic plan, which provides for an
integrated organization at a European level. This will provide all business areas with a centralized
and consistent direction and will further streamline the industrial and investment structure, thus
adopting a unique approach to domestic and international customers. In this respect, 2012 saw the
completion of the merger of Seicos S.p.A. and Amtec S.p.A. by incorporation into SELEX Elsag
S.p.A., as well as the corporate combination of SELEX Galileo S.p.A., SELEX Elsag S.p.A. and
SELEX Sistemi Integrati S.p.A. into SELEX ES S.p.A., with legal effect from 1 January 2013, and
of the related businesses into SELEX Galileo Ltd (now SELEX ES Ltd) in the United Kingdom.
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On 19 December 2011, Finmeccanica - through SELEX Elsag and Vega - and Northrop Grumman
signed a collaboration agreement to meet the NCIRC (NATO Computer Incident Response
Capability) - Full Operating Capability (FOC) programme requirements. The programme’s aim is to
ensure information security at around 50 NATO locations and sites across 28 countries, thus
enabling a rapid and effective detection and response to Cyber Security risks and vulnerabilities. On
29 February 2012, Finmeccanica and Northrop Grumman were awarded the related contract by

NATO NC3A (Consultation, Command and Control) Agency.

On 23 July 2012, Finmeccanica signed a strategic partnership agreement with the Italian and Russian
postal services for the supply by its subsidiary SELEX Elsag of know-how and technology to
develop and modernise the Russian postal network (comprising 42 thousand offices) by upgrading
the logistics network and rolling out new digital services. Under this agreement, joint activities will
also be carried out in 2012, which will be aimed at identifying further business opportunities that

permit the application of Italian know-how to the Russian postal services.

On 15 November 2012, Finmeccanica and EXPO 2015 SpA signed an agreement according to which
the Group will be the technology partner of the Universal Exhibition (Esposizione Universale) to be
held in Milan from 1 May to 31 October 2015, for the Safe City & Main Operation Center platform.
The partnership involves the supply of goods, infrastructures and services for a value of €mil. 28.3
and will allow the Finmeccanica Group — through its subsidiary SELEX ES — to implement, for the
first time in Italy, the innovative Smart, Safe and Secure City model for the surveillance and
protection of the exhibition site, pavilions and other infrastructures, as well as for the security of
operators and visitors, leveraging on an operating center that is able to monitor and oversee the event

in terms of safety.

At the end of October 2012, as to DRS, the new Proxy Agreement was signed with the Defense
Security Service, which will be applied to the entire DRS Group. The company will be managed by a
governance system, which on the one hand considers the needs to protect the national security
interest of the United States, and, on the other, it ensures higher transparency and governability on
the part of the non-US shareholder with respect to the rules imposed by the previous Proxy

Agreement.

In the Space business segment, the overhaul of Telespazio group’s organisational and management
model involved the merger of Telespazio Holding S.r.1., Telespazio group’s holding company (67%
owned by Finmeccanica and 33% owned by the French company Thales) by incorporation into the
operating company Telespazio S.p.A., as well as the restructuring of certain operations in Germany,
through the merger of VEGA Space GmbH and Telespazio Deutschland GmbH into a single
company (Telespazio VEGA Deutschland GmbH).
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In the Energy business segment, the merger of the parent Ansaldo Energia Holding into the
subsidiary Ansaldo Energia was completed on 30 June 2012. One of the aims is to streamline the

corporate structure, with a view to decreasing operating expenses and increasing profitability.

In the Transportation business segment, on 17 July 2012 Ansaldo STS reached a strategic
agreement with the China-based Cnr Dalian and the Taiwan-based General Resources Company for
licensing the “TramWave” technology to the joint venture, which will be formed by Cnr Dalian and
General Resources. The TramWave solution offers cable-free electric power distribution and was
developed and patented by Ansaldo STS for use in urban transport systems, thus eliminating the

visual impact of traditional overhead cables.

On 17 October 2012, AnsaldoBreda signed a trade agreement with Cnr Dalian for the transfer of
AnsaldoBreda’s technology related to the Sirio platform for 600 new trams to be used for public
transport in China. With the exception of the first ten vehicles that will be produced by
AnsaldoBreda in its Pistoia facilities and that will be used to train Cnr Dalian personnel, the vehicles

will be produced by Cnr Dalian in China under licence from AnsaldoBreda.

On 30 August 2012, Finmeccanica (on behalf of SELEX Sistemi Integrati, SELEX Elsag, Thales
Alenia Space Italia, MBDA and Elettronica) and the University of Trento signed a three-year master
agreement whereby Centro di Ricerca di Diagnostica Elettromagnetica ELEDIA (ELEctromagnetic
DIAgnostic) - against financial consideration — grants the above companies a right of option on all
results that should arise from the basic research into issues regarding innovation in the RF antennas
area, including radiating systems architecture and new-generation sensing devices, as well as

Wireless Power Transmission techniques.

On 23 November 2012, Finmeccanica signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Ministry of
Education, Universities and Research and with the Ministry of Labour and Social Policies, to launch,
for the first time in Italy, the "Ticket to Work" project, which is aimed at supporting young
generations in the transition from school to work through the enhancement of skills acquired in
different work experiences: in Italy and abroad, on both a part-time and full-time basis, either formal

or less formal such as internships, temporary and seasonal jobs.
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Financial transactions

In December 2012 the Luxembourg subsidiary Finmeccanica Finance S.A. seized a favourable
opportunity in the capital market, which is characterised by high availability of liquidity, with the
consequent drop in price levels, and completed a new issue of Eurobonds on the market of
institutional investors througha 5-year bond issue for a nominal value of €mil. 600 and with an
annual coupon of 4.375%. The issue price was equal to 99.4% of the nominal value. The coupons
will be paid on an annual basis. The issue, like all the other issues which have been previously
completed by Finmeccanica Finance, is fully guaranteed by Finmeccanica S.p.A., is listed in the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and has been implemented within the EMTN programme of a total
amount of €mil. 3,800, about €mil. 3,450 of which have been used after the abovementioned last
issue. The proceeds from the issue will be used to refinance, at favourable conditions, part of the
current debt expiring in December 2013, in line with the prudent borrowing policy which
Finmeccanica has always pursued, extending the average term of the Group’s debt and allowing a
reduction in its average cost. In this framework, as early as December 2012, a nominal amount of
€mil. 65 of bonds, due December 2013 and a coupon of 8.125%, was repurchased in the market, at
an average purchase value equal to 106.4 % of the nominal value. Said purchase must be added to
those that were already carried out in 2011 and in the previous months of 2012, thus determining a
total average repurchase value equal to 105.88% of the nominal value of the bonds and reducing the
outstanding amount to a nominal amount of €mil. 750. The issue was implemented by Banca IMI,
Barclays, BNP Paribas, Citi, Commerzbank, Crédit Agricole, HSBC, JP Morgan, RBS, Société

Générale and Unicredit.

Furthermore, it must be recalled that in 2012 the US subsidiary Meccanica Holdings redeemed (in
several tranches) bonds to an overall amount of $mil. 66, due July 2019, with a coupon of 6.25%,
issued by the company in 2009 to an overall amount of $mil. 500. The average repurchase price
totalled 89.81% of the nominal amount, with an average annual yield of 8.13%. Unlike with bonds

issued for the Euromarket, these bonds do not need to be cancelled immediately.

Below is a list of bond issues outstanding at 31 December 2012 which shows, in addition to those
directly issued by Finmeccanica (“FNM”) also the bond issuedby the subsidiaries Finmeccanica
Finance (“FinFin”) and Meccanica Holdings USA (“MH”), specifying switches (if any) from fixed-

rate to floating-rate bonds. The average residual life of bond issues is about 10 years.
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Issuer Year of Maturity  Currency Outstanding  Annual Type of offer
issue nominal coupon
amount
(€mil)
FinFin (1) 2003 2018 € 500 5.75% European institutional
FNM 2) 2005 2025 € 500 4.875% European institutional
FinFin 3) 2008 2013 € 750 8.125% European institutional
FinFin 4) 2009 2019 GBP 400 8.00% European institutional
FinFin 5) 2009 2022 € 600 5.25% European institutional
FinFin (6) 2012 2017 € 600 4.375% European institutional
MH ) 2009 2019 USD 434 6.25% American institutional
Rule 144A/Reg. S
MH ®) 2009 2039 USD 300 7.375% American institutional
Rule 144A/Reg. S
MH ) 2009 2040 USD 500 6.25% American institutional
Rule 144A/Reg. S
1) Bonds issued as part of the EMTN programme for a maximum of €bil. 3.8. The transaction was authorised pursuant

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

to Art. 129 of Legislative Decree 385/93. Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Rate derivative
transactions were made on these bonds and led to benefits throughout 2005 from low floating rates with an
effective cost of some 3.25%. During 2006, the effective cost of the loan returned to a fixed rate better than the
coupon and corresponding to an average of some 5.6%.

Bonds issued as part of the EMTN programme for a maximum of €bil. 3.8. The transaction was authorised pursuant
to Art. 129 of Legislative Decree 385/93. Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. It must be recalled
that, at the end of 2011, the related transactions on interest rates were terminated in advance, which have allowed to
turn the fair value into liquidity for €mil. 36; accordingly, the bond returned to a fixed rate of issue equal to 4.875%
Bonds issued as part of the EMTN programme for a maximum of €bil. 3.8. Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. To date, the entire residual value of the transaction (€ mil. 750) was converted into a floating-rate bond,
with a benefit of over 200 basis points in 2012; as currently expected, it should be confirmed in 2013 as well.

Bonds issued as part of the EMTN programme for a maximum of €bil. 3.8. Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. The proceeds of the issue were translated into euros and the exchange rate risk arising from the
transaction was fully hedged. Finmeccanica does not rule out the possibility of re-converting the bond into pound
sterling to partially hedge strategic investments in Great Britain.

Bonds issued as part of the EMTN programme for a maximum of €bil. 3.8. Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange.

Bonds issued as part of the EMTN programme for a maximum of €bil. 3.8. Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange.

Bonds issued under Rule 144A, Regulation S of the US Securities Act. The proceeds of this issue were entirely
used by Meccanica Holdings USA to finance the purchase of DRS replacing the dollar-issue bonds originally
issued by the company. These bonds were redeemed early following Finmeccanica’s purchase of DRS. As a result,
these issues were not hedged against exchange rate risk, and no interest rate transactions on the issue were

performed.
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All the bond issues of Finmeccanica Finance and Meccanica Holdings are irrevocably and
unconditionally secured by Finmeccanica, and are given a medium/long-term financial credit rating
by the three international rating agencies: Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s), Standard and

Poor's and Fitch.

At the presentation date of this Report, Finmeccanica’s credit ratings are as follows: Baa3 with a
negative outlook from Moody’s, BBB - with a negative outlook from Fitch and BB+ with a stable
outlook from Standard and Poor’s. Specifically, it should be noted that Moody’s rating was changed
first on 24 October 2012, following its decision to place Finmeccanica’s debt “on review for
downgrade” in July as a result of the further downgrading of the Italian Republic. Following the
closing date of the financial year, Moody’s changed the outlook previously assigned, from stable to
negative, in consideration of the financial and operative profile of the Group, as well as of delays in
the implementation of the disposals announced on which could weigh further uncertainties also
considering judicial measures that involved some senior managers of the Group. On the basis of
similar considerations, in February 2013 Fitch decided to place the rating of Finmeccanica on credit

watch for a period of six months.

In January 2013, Standard and Poor’s decided to downgrade the rating assigned to the medium/long-
term debt of Finmeccanica from the previous BBB - with a negative outlook to BB+ with a stable
outlook, essentially in consideration of the extension of the time limits relating to the implementation

of the disposal plan.

In this regard, it must be recalled that, in rating companies’ debt, Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s
use methodologies that take account of a company’s strong connection with its government or of
significant state interest in a company which may result in the issuer receiving a rating other than
what it would have been given on a stand-alone basis. Moreover, the current credit ratings assigned
by Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s do not show, to date, any difference between the “stand alone”
rating and the rating determined based on Standard and Poor’s “Government related entities* (GRE)
and Moody’s “Government related issuers” (GRI) methodologies. Overall, Finmeccanica is rated
“Investment Grade”, with a negative outlook, by Fitch and Moody’s, while, after the last

downgrading, the rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s is “sub investment grade”.

Finally, it should be noted that the overall changes that have occurred in the rating of the
Finmeccanica’s debt have not determined any significant effects on the loans in place that have been
confirmed. However, it could be more difficult and costly to use some of the sources of financing
used to date. On the other hand, the Group is actively committed to rolling out the steps of the
restructuring plan launched in 2011, which include, inter alia, the reduction of debt. Moreover, the

Group’s financial and investment and contract selection policies mean the Group constantly monitors
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the soundness of its financial position and its financial debt level, which also enable compliance with

the indicators the rating agencies refer to.

All the bonds above are governed by rules with standard legal clauses for these types of corporate
transactions on institutional markets. In the case of the above issues, these clauses do not require any
undertaking with regard to compliance with specific financial parameters (financial covenants) but
they do require negative pledge and cross-default clauses. Based on negative pledge clauses, Group
issuers, Finmeccanica SpA and their “Material Subsidiaries” (companies in which Finmeccanica
SpA owns more than 50% of the share capital and represent at least 10% of Finmeccanica’s
consolidated gross revenues and capital) are expressly prohibited from pledging collateral security or
other obligations to secure their debt in the form of bonds or listed financial instruments or financial
instruments that quality for listing, unless these guarantees are extended to all bondholders.
Exceptions to this prohibition are securitisation and, starting from July 2006, the establishment of
assets for the use indicated in Art. 2447-bis et seq. of the Italian Civil Code. On the contrary, the
cross-default clauses give the bondholders the right to request early redemption of the bonds in their
possession in the event of default by the Group issuers and/or Finmeccanica and/or any “Material

Subsidiary” that results in a failure to make payment beyond preset limits.
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Other events

As part of the Group’s focus on its strategic sectors, on 21 December 2012 Avio S.p.A. signed an
agreement with the General Electric Group (“GE”) for the transfer of its businesses concerning its
aeronautical engine division. The completion of the transaction is subject to the antitrust and
regulatory conditions precedent. It is expected that, at the time of the closing of the transaction,
Finmeccanica will collect a gross amount of about €mil. 260, to be applied to reduce the Group’s
debt level, against a total initial amount equal to about half of this sum invested in 2006.
Furthermore, Finmeccanica will remain a shareholder holding 14.3% of BCV, which is the company
that wholly owns Avio S.p.A., together with the majority shareholder Cinven. At the end of the
transaction, Avio S.p.A. will only conduct the business in the Space sector that has not been acquired
by GE. The shareholders have also agreed to start a process, led by Finmeccanica, aimed at
increasing the value of the business outside Cinven control, in accordance with the national
regulations on the management of strategic companies, also considering the possibility to increase
the stake held by Finmeccanica through an option which is exercisable, independently or with third
parties, if certain conditions are met. Finally, it must be recalled that the stake indirectly held in Avio
was already the object of a previous agreement with Fondo Strategico Italiano SpA (“FSI”), with the
condition precedent of Avio’s listing on the stock exchange before the end of 2012 under favourable
market conditions, which would have allowed FSI to become a shareholder of Avio with a stable
approximate 15% investment, acquiring Finmeccanica’s entire investment therein. However, this

agreement is expired without the conditions for its entry into force having been fulfilled.
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FINMECCANICA AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Inasmuch as Finmeccanica operates towards its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities as an industrial and

strategic holding company, we deem it better to present the following section at Group level in order to give a

comprehensive representation.

RISKS

ACTIONS

The Group
reported
significant
operating
losses.Returning
to profitability
and a fully
sustainable
financial
position is
connected to the
success of the
restructuring
plan launched
by management

The Group is
strongly
dependent on
the level of
expenditure of
national
governments
and public
institutions
which, in the
reference
sectors of the
Group, are
affected by
further cuts

Management has launched a plan to thoroughly
restructure the Group, particularly the Aeronautics,
Security
Transportation divisions, in order to become more

Defence  and Electronics  and
industrially efficient and reduce debt. If this plan
should not prove to be successful, the Group’s
ability to effectively compete in global markets, as
well as its financial stability, could be negatively

affected.

The major customers of the Group are national
governments or public institutions. Moreover, the
Group takes part in numerous international
programmes funded by the European Union or
other intergovernmental organisations. Therefore,
the Group was affected by the reduction in the
expense budgets of the public institutions. Given
that the expenditure programmes adopted by
governments may be subject to delays, changes
under way, annual reviews or cancellations, in
particular in periods with high instability like those
that mark the global economy now, the Group’s
industrial plans, as well as the financial resources
necessary for their implementation, might be
affected by changes, even significant ones. The
worsening of the reference economic scenario,
with a possible negative review of the expense
budgets of public authorities that are intended for
the sectors in which the Group operates, might
affect not only the volumes and results, but also
Group debt, due to lower amounts received as
advances or down payments on new orders.
Moreover, following the acquisition of DRS, the
Group is greatly exposed to the risk of US Defence
budget Finally, of political
instability, if any, in those countries where the

cuts. situations

Group operates (such as those occurred in North
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In 2011, the Group launched a thorough
restructuring plan, in addition to that
2010, designed to
cut production costs

begun in restore

efficiency, and

rationalise its product portfolio and
production structure, along with identify
assets to be sold. During 2012 the
implementation of this plan has continued
and the first significant results were

obtained.

The
international diversification policy, which

Group continues pursuing an
led to the identification of three “domestic
markets” (Italy, the UK and the US), and
to competition in emerging markets
marked by high growth rates, in particular
in the aeronautics and defence markets, in
order to be less dependent on cuts that
may be made by individual countries.
Moreover, under the Group strategy,
performance in the major countries is
constantly monitored in order to ensure a
timely alignment of activities planned
with customer needs and a strict selection
of its investments, through assessment
procedures of the potential returns and
their strategic capacity. In addition, the
restructuring plan in which the Group is
involved, should guarantee, against the
reduction in the customers’ budgets, an
increased ability to compete in national

and international markets.



Cuts in public
budgets could
affect also
grants for the
research and
development
activities of the
Group and as a
conseguence,
also the Group
ability to
successfully
compete in
global markets.

The persistence
of the economic
crisis could
reduce the
Group’s
profitability and
its ability to
generate cash
flow even in the
civil sectors

Certain Group
companies are
involved in
judicial
investigations

Africa in 2011) could affect the trade activity of
the Group in those countries.

The strong tensions on public budgets have already
reduced and could further reduce public grants for
R&D activities, for which the Group invested €bil.
1,9 in 2012, considering the unavoidable need to
constantly improve its products portfolio. In
particular, in Italy, grants for R&D expenses for
the Aeronautics and Defence sectors, which are
regulated by Law 808/1985, were suspended in
2012. Even if the 2012 Stability Law envisages
new grants starting from 2013, a non-compliance
of the granting levels with that of the other
European competitors could negatively influence
the Group
competitive, due to a lower self-financing ability

capacity of being successfully

caused by the complex economic scenario.

The persistence of the economic crisis not only
involves budget cuts by public institutions, which
represent a significant portion of the Group’s
customers, but also significantly affects civil
markets, in particular helicopters, civil aeronautics
and energy, thereby increasing competition in the
sectors in which the Group operates. Delays or
reductions in the acquisitions of new orders, or the
acquisition of new orders on less favourable terms
than in the past, including financially, could reduce
the Group profitability and increase the Group’s
financial requirements during the performance of
such orders.

As more fully explained in the “Corporate
Governance Report and Shareholder Structure”,
certain Group companies and the parent company
itself are involved in judicial investigations which
inter alia, led to the arrest of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Finmeccanica Spa.
Such investigations are currently underway, as
well as the closer examinations started by the
Group which are described in the same section.
These
significant effects both on the existing contracts

investigations may potentially have
and on the outlook for the acquisitions of new
orders. In this regard and considering that these
legal proceedings are in an initial stage and on the
basis of the information obtained and the analyses
performed, the Directors did not make any specific
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The Group pursues a strict policy as
regards the assessment and selection of the
investments through which it focuses the
limited resources available on the most
efficient programmes with the highest
potential of return.

The Group’s goal is to improve its
industrial efficiency and its ability to
perform while

contracts, reducing

overhead costs.

The Group has taken all steps necessary to

more thoroughly examine any
irregularities and to prevent employees,
directors and suppliers from continuing to
engage in inappropriate practices. These
actions, together with the outcome of the
actions completed to date, are described in
detail in the

Report and Shareholder Structure”.

“Corporate Governance



The Group
operates
significantly on
long-term
contracts at a
given price

during 2012.
developments

further
and

provisions However,

presently  unforeseeable
undefinable could have significant impacts on the
Group’s performance and financial position, as
well as on its relationships with its customers.

In this respect, it is noted that investigations have
been already started and partially completed at
Finmeccanica and other Group companies, aiming
at verifying inadequate behaviours, if any, and at
setting out more effective processes for the
governance system.

In order to recognise revenues and margins
resulting from medium- and long-term contracts in
the income statement of each period, the Group
adopts the percentage-of-completion method,
which requires: (i) an estimate of the costs
necessary to carry out the contract, including risks
for delays and additional actions to be undertaken
to mitigate the risk of non-performance and (ii)
checking the state of progress of the activities.
Given their nature, these are both subject to
management’s estimates and, as a result, they
depend on the ability to foresee the effects of
future events. An unexpected increase in the costs
incurred while performing the contracts might
determine a significant reduction in profitability or
a loss, if these costs exceed the revenues deriving
from the contract.
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Finmeccanica’s goal is to regulate within
the Group the process of preparing and
authorising major contracts by issuing a
special directive. In fact, starting with the
business proposal stage, Finmeccanica
controls the main performance and
financial  parameters including the
Economic Value Added (EVA), which is
one of the aggregates used to evaluate the
major contracts of directly controlled and
strategic companies (as in the “Training
and operation of the Board of Directors
and Boards of Statutory Auditors of
subsidiaries” directive). Moreover, the
Group reviews the estimated costs of
contracts regularly, at least quarterly. In
order to identify, monitor and assess risks
and linked to the

performance of the contracts, the Group

uncertainties

adopted, as provided in the “Order risk

management”’ directive, Lifecycle
Management and Risk Assessment
procedures, aimed at reducing the

probability of occurrence or the negative
consequences identified and at timely
implementing the mitigation actions
identified. Under these procedures, all
significant risks must be identified from
the offering stage and monitored while the
programme is being carried out, by

constantly  comparing the physical
progress and the accounting status of the
programme. Top management,
programme managers and the quality,
production and finance departments are all

involved in making these assessments



During the
current activity,
the
Finmeccanica
Group is
exposed to
liability risks to
customers or
associated third
parties in
connection with
the proper
performance of
contracts, also
because of
activities
pertaining to
sub-suppliers

The Group’s
debt position
was affected by
the acquisition
of DRS in 2008
and by the
negative cash-
flow of the
Transportation
sector. This debt
could have an
impact on the
Group’s
operational and
financial
strategies

As part of its activities, the Group may be held
liable in connection with (i) the delay in or non-
supply of the products or the services indicated in
the contract, (ii) the non-compliance of these
products or services with the customer’s requests,
due to design and manufacturing defects of
products and services, for example, and (iii)
defaults and/or delays in marketing, rendering of
after-sale services and maintenance and revision of
products. These liabilities might arise from causes
that are directly ascribable to Group companies or
causes that are ascribable to third parties outside
the Group that act as suppliers or sub-suppliers for
the Group.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s net financial
debt came to €mil. 3,373, equal to 90% of its
shareholders’ equity at that date. This level of debt
is attributable to the acquisition of DRS
Technologies (DRS) in October 2008, which
caused the Group’s debt to rise by €bil. 3.6.
Following this acquisition, Finmeccanica reduced
its impact through a successful capital increase, the
and a debt
rescheduling through the issue of bonds in Europe,
the US and the UK. This strategy made it possible
to repay DRS’s debts and the bridge loan used for

selling off of non-core assets,

the acquisition. However, the inadequate cash flow
levels obtained by the Group, also due to the
negative performance of the Transportation sector,
did not make possible to further reduce the
indebtedness. Such debt level is still high, thereby
reducing the Group’s profitability through higher
it to future
fluctuations in interest rates (as to the floating

borrowing costs and exposing

portion), which could influence the Group’s

strategy, limiting its operational and strategic
flexibility, in part due to current market conditions,
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(“phase review”). The results are weighted
in determining the costs necessary to
complete the programme on an at least
The
committed to improving its industrial

quarterly basis. Group is also
efficiency and its ability to precisely
perform to customer specifications.
Group usually take out

insurance policies available on the market

companies

to cover potential damages. However, it
cannot be excluded that there may be
damages that are not covered by insurance
policies, that exceed the limit of liability
insured or that insurance premiums may
be increased in the future. Moreover, the
Group the
performance of programmes using the

continuously ~ monitors
aforementioned Lifecycle Management
techniques.

In connection with these programmes the
Group is committed to improving its
industrial efficiency and its ability to
customer

precisely perform to

specifications.

The Group has implemented a financial
strategy allowing it to significantly extend
the remaining life of its debt to over 10
years, and to reduce its exposure to
interest rate fluctuations by issuing fixed-
rate bonds. Following the €mil. 600 bond
issue, successfully placed in December,
the Group already possesses the funds
necessary to refinance short-term debts
(the next maturity that needs to be
refinanced is the redemption of the €bil. 1
bonded loan at 8.125% maturing in
December 2013, for which, from 2011, the
Group already partially bought back a
nominal €mil. 250. The Group also has
confirmed short-term credit lines totalling
€mil. 2,400 (until September 2015) from a
pool of leading Italian and foreign banks.
This credit line is an important source of
medium-term liquidity and, given its
amount and that it is a revolving facility, it
the
requirements, in which collections are

meets Group’s working capital



The Group’s
credit rating is
also linked to
the opinions of
the rating
agencies

The Group
realises part of
its revenues in
currencies other
than the
currencies in
which costs are
incurred,
exposing it to
the risk of
exchange rate
fluctuations. A
part of
consolidated
assets are

which could cause the Group’s funding needs to
increase, at least during certain periods of time.
Potential future liquidity crises could also restrict
the Group’s ability to repay its debts.

All Group bond issues are given a medium-term
financial credit rating by the three international
rating agencies: Moody's Investors Service
(Moody’s), Standard and Poor's and Fitch. At the
presentation date of this report Finmeccanica’s
credit ratings were: Baa3 with a negative outlook
from Moody’s (from Baa2 with a negative
outlook), BBB- with a negative outlook from Fitch
and BB+ with a stable outlook from Standard and
Poor’s. In January 2013, Standard and Poor’s
lowered its rating on the medium/long-term debt of
Finmeccanica from the previous BBB- with a
negative outlook to BB+ with a stable outlook. The
downgrading of the Group’s credit rating in 2011
and 2012 is attributable to the deterioration in the
to the
execution of the expected disposal plan and, in

Group’s performance, delays in the
part, to the downgrade in the rating for the Italian
Republic. Overall, Fitch and Moody’s assigned the
investment grade status to Finmeccanica, with a
negative outlook, while after the last downgrading
performed, Standard & Poor’s assigned it the sub-
investment grade rating. A further downgrade in
the Group’s credit rating below investment grade
status, even with no effect on the existing loans,
could severely limit its access to funding sources,
as well as increase its borrowing costs for existing
and future loans, which would have a negative
impact on the Group’s business prospects and its
performance and financial results.

The Group reports a significant portion of
revenues in dollars and pounds, while costs can be
denominated in other currencies (mainly euros).
Accordingly, any negative changes in the reference
exchange rate might have negative effects
(transaction risk).

Moreover, the Group made significant investments
in the United Kingdom and in the United States.
Since the reporting currency of the consolidated
Group financial statements is the euro, negative
changes in the exchange rates between the euro
and the dollar and between the euro and the pound

sterling might have a negative impact on the Group
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highly seasonal in nature.

Finally, the Group seeks to continually
reduce its debt by keeping a close eye on
cash generation and the disposal of assets.

As noted previously, the Group is actively

engaged in  implementing  actions
identified under the restructuring plan for
reducing its debt. Moreover, the Group’s
financial policies and careful selection of
investments and contracts involve being
constantly alert to maintaining a balanced
financial structure. In seeking out
alternatives to pursue, the Group always
takes into account the potential impact
such could have in the indicators used by

the rating agencies.

The Group
organised hedge

continuously applies an

policy to combat
transaction risk for all contracts using the
financial instruments available on the
market.

Changes in the dollar and pound exchange
rates also give rise to translation
differences recognised in Group equity
that are partially mitigated through the
aforementioned pound and dollar issues.
Moreover, in intercompany financing
activities denominated in currencies other

than the euro individual positions are



denominated in
US dollars and
pound sterling.

The Group
operates in some
segments
through joint
ventures, in
which the
control is shared
with other
partners

The Groupis a
sponsor of
defined-benefit
pension plans in
the UK and the
US and of other
minor plans in
Europe

The Group
operates in
particularly

balance sheet and income statement due to the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
investees (translation risk).

The major joint ventures in the Aerospace and
Defence area are MBDA, held at 25% (with
partners BAE Systems and EADS), Thales Alenia
Space, held at 33%, and Telespazio, held at 67%
(both with partner Thales) and GIE-ATR, held at
50% through Alenia Aermacchi (with EADS).
These joint ventures, which are consolidated by the
Group on a line-by-line basis, jointly generated
18% of the revenues consolidated in 2012.

The operations of the joint ventures are subject to
management risks and uncertainties, mainly due to
the possible arising of differences between the
partners on the identification and the achievement
of operating and strategic objectives, and the
difficulties in resolving any conflicts that may
arise between them in the ordinary course of
business of the joint venture. In particular, the joint
ventures in which the Group has an interest may be
subject to decision deadlocks which may
ultimately lead to the liquidation of the joint
venture. In the case of liquidation of the joint
venture or sale of the interest by the Group, it may
have to share or transfer technological skills or
know-how that were originally contributed to the
joint venture.

Under the defined-benefit plans, the Group is
required to ensure a specific future retirement
benefit level for employees participating in the
plan, assuming the risk that the plan assets (stocks,
bonds, etc.) are not sufficient to cover the agreed-
upon benefits. If the value of plan assets is less
than the agreed-upon benefit level, the Group duly
recognises the amount of the deficit among
liabilities; at 31 December 2012, this amounted to
€mil. 289. If the value of plan assets falls
significantly, for example due to high volatility in
the stock and bond markets, the Group must make
good this loss to plan participants, which therefore
has a negative effect on its own performance and
financial position.

and

The Group civil

administrative proceedings; for some of these, the

is party to judicial,
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hedged at the Group level.

The Group constantly follows, including
through the involvement of its own top
management, the performance of these
activities, in order to timely identify and
manage critical issues.

The Group keeps a close eye on plan
deficits and investment strategies and
takes immediate corrective action when
necessary.

The Group regularly monitors potential
and existing disputes, taking the necessary



complex
markets, where
disputes are
settled after a
considerable
period of time
and following
extremely
convoluted
procedures. The
Group also
operates
numerous
industrial
facilities and is
therefore
exposed to
environmental
risks

The Group
operates in
particularly
complex
markets which
require
compliance with
specific
regulations

A significant
portion of the
consolidated
assets relate to
intangible
assets,
specifically
goodwill

Group has established a specific provision in the
consolidated financial statements to cover any
potential liabilities (totalling €mil. 242 at 31
December 2012). Some of these proceedings in
which the Finmeccanica Group is involved - for
which a negative outcome is unlikely or that
cannot be quantified - are not covered by the
provision.

The Group’s business activities are subject to laws
and regulations protecting the environment and
human health that impose limits on air emissions
and the release of waste into the water and the soil
and that regulate the handling of hazardous waste
and the restoration of contaminated sites. Under
current regulations, owners and operators of
contaminated sites are responsible for pollution
found on such sites and, therefore, may be required
to bear the costs of environmental assessment and
remediation, regardless of the source of the
contamination. While carrying out its production
activities, the Group is exposed to the risk of
accidental contamination of the environment and
may be required to bear the costs of restoring any
sites that may be contaminated.

The Group designs, develops and manufactures
products in the defence sector. These products are
particularly important to the protection of national
security interests and, therefore, their exportation
is subject to the receipt of special authorisations
from the relevant authorities. The prohibition,
limitation or withdrawal, if any (in the case, for
example, of embargoes or geopolitical conflicts),
of the authorisation to export the products might
have significant negative impact on the Group’s
operations and financial situation. Moreover, non-
compliance with these regulations could result in
withdrawal of authorisations.

At 31 December 2012 the
intangible assets of €mil. -7,388, of which €mil.
4,384 relate to goodwill (14% of total assets) and
€mil. 1,507 to The
recoverability of these amounts is linked to the
realization of future plans of the reference

Group reported
costs.

development

businesses/products.
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corrective actions and adjusting its
provisions for risks on a quarterly basis.

As to environmental risks, the Group has
established an environmental monitoring
and assessment programme and has
insurance coverage to limit the impact of

any contamination event.

The Group monitors, through specific
structures, the constant updating of the
relevant regulations. Commercial actions
are subject to regulatory restrictions and
receipt of the necessary authorisations.

The
performance against the expected plans,

Group  constantly  monitors
implementing the necessary corrective
measures in the case of unfavourable
trends. These updates are reflected, when
the consistency of the amounts posted is
assessed, in the expected flows used for

the impairment tests.



FINMECCANICA AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Strategic guidelines and management approach

In an international context that is evolving and increasingly attentive to sustainable development and
to the needs of the future population, the adoption of business strategies aimed at safeguarding the
environment and protecting natural resources are the key elements for the long-term maintenance of
the value, both economic and social, of a company.

Finmeccanica, which is fully aware of the importance of these issues, works proactively and hard, in
particular integrating the concept of environmental sustainability into its business: focus on the
management and use of natural resources; research and development of advanced technological
solutions; continuous monitoring of corporate performance on environmental issues and health and
safety of workers at the workplace.

The Group has renewed its commitment, once again ranking among the leading companies in terms
of sustainability in the Aerospace and Defense sector: after having been confirmed once again in the
prestigious Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes (DJSI, both Europe and World) in 2012, Finmeccanica
is the only company in the sector worldwide, which has been included in both Indexes since 2010.
The DJSI, through specific analyses drawn up by the Sustainability rating agency SAM - Sustainable
Asset Management, assesses the performance of leading companies in terms of economic,
environmental and social sustainability.

Furthermore, Finmeccanica has been voluntarily participating, since 2008, in the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP), an independent, non-profit organization that is committed to reducing greenhouse gas
emissions and to the sustainable use of water resources. The CDP, on behalf of 655 institutional
investors, asks companies to declare corporate strategies, objectives and practices adopted for the
management of climate change in a transparent manner. This information is then used by financial
analysts and decision makers for their investments. In 2012 Finmeccanica, which is included in the
Industrial sector of Italy 100 (represented by the top 100 Italian companies by market capitalization
listed on the Italian Stock Exchange, in nine different market segments), once again obtained
excellent results, thus reflecting the intense activity carried out by the Group in relation to Climate
Change issues.

The Group’s third Sustainability Report for 2012, which has been prepared in accordance with the
Guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), version 3.1, in all material aspects, including
environmental issues, increasingly shows Finmeccanica’s determination to build sustainable value as
a driver of technological innovation and an important market opportunity. Therefore, for a detailed

analysis of these issues, reference is made to the Sustainability Report.

67



In 2012, thanks to the implementation of numerous actions, as regards both plants and structures and
operations, the Group continued its sustainable path, allocating considerable financial resources to
environmental and health and safety activities, which were devoted both to projects implemented and
managed directly by the companies, and to the Group’s centralized projects.

In particular, in relation to the development and implementation of environmental projects that can
be used by all companies, the EHS - Environment, Health and Safety organisational unit of
Finmeccanica Group Real Estate (FGRE) - which has been tasked with the direction, coordination
and control of the Group’s activities on environmental and health and safety issues — completed,
during the year, the implementation and testing of the Risk Gate model, i.e. the mathematical model
which allows the calculation of the environmental risk of the Group’s industrial sites through self-
assessment. The first survey was carried out on the main Italian sites of the Group and allowed the
assessment of the environmental risk associated with various aspects (air, water, soil, ecosystem),
thus providing companies with useful indications as to the aspects that require intervention on a
priority basis and allowing the same to define a targeted and structured plan of action for the
reduction of risks. The implementation of campaigns using the Risk Gate model will be a valid
support to the periodical assessment of the risk concerning the Group companies’ sites. Furthermore,
the Group is considering to also extend the application of the Risk Gate model to the main foreign

sites.

In addition to the activities aimed at implementing the Risk Gate model, a number of actions were
performed which were aimed at improving the performance of the new web-based system for the
Group’s EHS reporting: it should be noted that the main actions taken for the 2012 campaign to
gather EHS data and information included, in particular, the creation of a number of environmental
indicators aimed at making reporting even more complete and exact (e.g. improving reporting of
carbon data and of the Group’s Carbon Management System - CMS, which is already integrated in
the platform), the improvement of procedures for the calculation of emissions into the atmosphere,
the introduction of additional checks for consistency aimed at testing, in real time, the consistency
and strength of any data entered into the system.

Within the CMS, which has been developed in line with the relevant international rules and
standards, in particular with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (GHG), activities continued in relation to
the assessment and management of the environmental impact due to the emissions of climate-
changing gases: conducting analyses in relation to the corporate performance achieved in terms of
reduction of emissions of carbon dioxide; design, implementation and dissemination of dedicated
Group Guidelines (CO, and Climate Change: Carbon Management in the Finmeccanica Group;

Guidelines for the management of Fluorinated Greenhouse Gases (F-gases) at the sites of the
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Finmeccanica Group) that can help both to improve the environmental management of these aspects
and to improve future performance; implementation by the companies of a number of projects and
initiatives aimed at reducing emissions of CO,, which are subject to monitoring and control in order
to assess and establish their environmental and economic benefits (also through the Group’s EHS
reporting system).

This approach, which is structured in line with the methodology known as PDCA Plan-Do-Check-
Act, represents a crucial element for the correct management of aspects connected to environmental
protection and, furthermore, forms an integral part of the Environmental Management Systems
(EMS) and of the Management Systems for Health and Safety in the Workplace (EHS), which are
largely widespread within the Group. For any additional information, reference is made to the 2012

Sustainability Report.

Finally, within the analysis, direction and support activities carried out by FGRE for the Group
companies in relation to the Italian environmental crimes legislation (Legislative Decree 121 of 7
July 2011), the Group reviewed the Organisational, Management and Control Models (OMCM)
pursuant to Legislative Decree 231 of 8 June 2001 in relation to the Group companies based in Italy.
Reviews, additions and updating activities are in progress in relation to the internal procedures for

the management of corporate processes on the part of the companies.

Innovation and disclosure of best practices

In the last few decades consumers have become increasingly aware that they can influence market
dynamics through a "positive selective pressure" towards products with lower environmental impact,
while at the same time pushing the economic and industrial world to these issues, in order to achieve
an advantage in a competitive global environment.

Finmeccanica sees Sustainability as both the rationalization of natural resources that are necessary to
the production of finished products, while also going through the redefinition of production
processes, and the manufacturing and supply of products and services with lower environmental
impact. Therefore, the innovation and sharing of the Group’s good practices represent two essential
aspects, which form an integral part of the business and of the sustainable commitment of
Finmeccanica. Corporate know-how with respect to environmental, health and safety matters is the
property of the Group EHS Community, which is coordinated by FGRE and is currently made up of
more than 100 dedicated staff members who meet periodically to share best practices and their own

management experience.
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Communication, education and training

Finmeccanica is committed to creating a corporate culture of sustainability by spreading awareness
that every action, though minimal, can actually make a difference, as well as the communication and
information at all levels regarding the need to build and implement sustainability on a daily basis.

The numerous opportunities to meet and share experience aim to implement an all-round sustainable
vision: during 2012 FGRE organised and coordinated a number of meetings on environmental,
health and safety issues (workshops, roundtables to discuss and share plans/projects), which involved
all Group companies all over the world. Furthermore, the implementation of the new EHS Portal, the
EHS Web Community, which was developed by FGRE in 2011 and is operational since 2012, with
more than 150 technical papers and in-depth studies on EHS issues, including Guidelines and sector
studies, and which is accessible to more than 190 EHS Resources of the Group located in 4
continents, contributes even more concretely to the dissemination of good practices and to specialist

training in these areas.

Energy issues

The structured management of energy issues is of primary importance to the large industrial groups,

which are called to face challenges linked to international markets that are increasingly complex and

rapidly changing.

Since 2003, Finmeccanica Group Services (FGS), in close collaboration with the community of

Energy Managers of the operating companies, has developed an Energy Management model for the

Group, with the aim of managing energy costs in an integrated manner, thus freeing up economic

and financial resources in order to structurally reduce consumption and the environmental impact of

the same.

The areas of intervention are divided into 3 macro-areas:

e Energy Supply: centralised management of the Group’s energy costs, equal to more than €mil.
120 per year, through competitive and transparent negotiations and a constant evolution of
procurement models. The negotiations concluded on 2013 supplies will allow the companies to
benefit, in the course of the next year, from an estimated reduction in energy costs equal to about
€mil. 5.8".

Furthermore, 23% of the Group’s Italian consumption will be certified as from renewable source
(RECS - Renewable Energy Certificate System).
e Energy Demand: structural reduction in energy demand from sites, through a model that supports

the re-investment of savings from negotiations in efficiency improvement initiatives and

! This estimate only refers to the negotiable “energy and pure gas” components, excluding system charges, taxes and duties.
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feasibility studies aimed at encouraging implementation of technology for the use and production
of high-efficiency energy from renewable source.
In the period 2006-2012 the long-term energy efficiency programme of FGS reported investments
by the group companies equal to about €mil. 18, with an average payback of 3-4 years.

¢ Sustainability, Communication and Social Services: Supporting the group parent in any initiatives
linked to sustainability and communication issues, including the Finmeccanica Sustainability

Report, the Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes and the Carbon Disclosure Project.

Relevant environmental issues and Group performance

The most significant environmental aspects of the activities carried out by Finmeccanica are
associated with the consumption of energy resources, water resources, production and waste
management, use of hazardous substances, emissions into the atmosphere. Apart from these, other
aspects are reported, which are particularly connected with biodiversity, soil and subsoil, the
management of ozone-depleting substances. A brief description in this regard is reported below. For
more details, please refer to the environmental section of the Finmeccanica website

(Sustainability/Finmeccanica and the environment).

Energy consumption, emissions into the atmosphere and Emission Trading
The energy sources used within the Group are:
e clectricity;
e natural gas;
e diesel fuel for generating power and heat;
e other energy sources (e.g. district heating).
Electricity and natural gas represent approximately all the power consumption.
The reporting of the Group’s energy consumption has been made even more complete thanks to the
introduction of specific indicators by which it has been possible to improve reporting on fuels used
for product tests (aircraft, trains, etc.).
Even though Finmeccanica’s activities are not in high-energy intensity sectors, the rationalization of
energy consumption is one of the most significant environmental issues for the Group’s companies,
which have performed and perform operations to improve plant energy efficiency, mainly relating to:
e heat recovery;
e improvements to lighting efficiency;

e replacement of obsolete machinery with more efficient machines.
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Of significant importance is the gasification process which has been started by AgustaWestland for
some years at the main Italian sites: in 2012, for example, the Vergiate site eliminated the use of fuel
oil thanks to the conversion of the plant serving the factory from a thermal power plant to a natural
gas plant, thus obtaining a significant reduction in CO, emissions.

Furthermore, 2012 saw the completion of the certification of SELEX Galileo Ltd. according to the
standard ISO 50001:2011 "Energy management systems®, which sets out requirements to establish,

start, maintain and improve an energy management system.

The atmospheric emissions produced by Group sites are due to both combustion processes and
industrial processes: the improvement of the reporting procedures introduced in the web-based
system in 2012 have helped to make reporting of air quality parameters (in addition to CO,
calculated through the CMS, NOx, SO,, Volatile Organic Compounds - VOC, Volatile Inorganic
Compounds - VIC-, heavy metals - Pb, Hg, Cd, Cr, As, Co, Ni- and particulate are also reported)

€ven more precise .

In the scope of application of the Emission Trading Directive (Emission Trading Scheme - ETS)
(Directive 2003/87/EC), which implements the Kyoto Protocol for the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions, all the sites covered by the scheme, located throughout Italy, have received certification

of their emissions from a body accredited by the Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea.

Water resources management

In recent years, the issue of water and the problems arising from its management has become central
in the global debate. A corporate commitment to sustainability cannot be separated from the
definition of strategies on the efficient use of water resources capable of also generating economic
benefits, in addition to environmental benefits.

For this reason, Finmeccanica promotes the adoption of a sustainable water management model at its
sites, which should not be limited to achieving or maintaining regulatory compliance, but it must
necessarily consider the possibility of reducing water consumption in terms of quantity and the
pollution caused by waste water in terms of quality.

The definition of performance indicators related to the use of water resources at the Group sites has
allowed the identification of several areas for improvement over the years and the subsequent
definition and implementation of specific projects. In particular, activities continued in 2012 to
establish systems for recycling and reuse of water (including stormwater) at plants, with the

conversion of open cycles in closed cycles, where possible.
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Waste production and management

Waste production and management, which is among the most important aspects connected to the
activities of the Finmeccanica Group, constitute an important environmental sustainability indicator:
Finmeccanica, as expressed through its Environmental Policy, pursues the objective of reducing the
amount of waste produced and increasing the amount sent for recovery.

Waste is monitored during all phases of operation (storage, transport, treatment, disposal/recovery).
The awareness-raising activity carried out by the companies just aims to make their staff and
suppliers working at the sites integral to a virtuous cycle that sees, in the foreground, the reduction in

waste production and the recovery of the same, thus maximising their separate collection.

Soil and subsoil

The Group companies have performed environmental investigations to ascertain the state of the soil
in the areas that are potentially exposed to a risk of pollution due to the industrial activities carried
out there; where necessary, safety and/or reclamation procedures have been started.

In some cases, companies have started the process of developing environmental profiles to identify
potential sources of contamination of environmental receptors, so that these can be eliminated and
potentially contaminated areas can be remediated and developed. In many cases, the site profiles find
no contamination at the sites investigated.

One of the main potential sources of soil pollution at industrial sites is the presence of underground
tanks, which are used to store liquid raw materials, fuels and/or liquid waste. Wherever possible, the
Group is taking steps to gradually eliminate or replace underground tanks - which are used to store
liquid raw materials, fuels and/or liquid waste and which are one of the main potential sources of soil
pollution at industrial sites — with aboveground tanks, in order to reduce the risk of soil

contamination.

Biodiversity

In 2011 Finmeccanica launched, due to the large variety of local areas in which it operates and being
aware of the importance played by biodiversity, some activities connected to the reporting of the
related aspects.

For the second consecutive year, the survey was conducted in line with the GRI and with best
practices in sustainability reporting and returned a detailed picture of the location of the sites falling
within the scope of the EHS reporting with respect to protected and / or high-biodiversity natural
areas (sites inside, containing portions of or near these areas). This allowed the Group to understand,

given the type of activities that are carried out therein, the environmental impact on these areas.

73



The analysis continued through screening of business plans (strategies, plans and actions) in place
for managing impacts on biodiversity. The geographical areas in which the Group companies operate
are extremely diversified: therefore, the definition of strategies and actions aimed at protecting
biodiversity is functional and connected to the characteristics of the related land and habitats, as well

as to the particular production activities conducted.

Hazardous substances

Consistently with the Group’s Environmental Policy, the Finmeccanica Group companies implement
measures aimed at controlling and reducing the use of substances that are classified as hazardous
substances as defined by the legislative, regulatory and administrative provisions for the
classification, packaging and labelling of hazardous substances, in order to prevent and minimize
risks for the workers’ health and safety and for the environment.

The Group’s sustainable approach to hazardous substances management sees, as a priority, the
elimination of hazardous substances, by also changing production processes, where possible;
alternatively, the Group may take steps to replace hazardous substances with other lower-impact
substances. The operational approach, which is in line in particular with the REACH Regulation
(Registration, Evaluation and Authorisation of Chemicals) (EC) 1907/2006, is aimed at improving
protection of human health and of the environment, while at the same time maintaining
competitiveness and strengthening the spirit of innovation of the European chemical industry.

Due to the amounts of substances and preparations used in the processes typical of companies in the
Aeronautics and Helicopters sectors and due to the size of the galvanizing baths used for surface
treatment of metals, some of the Group sites included in these sectors of activity are classified as
being of Major Accident Hazard (MAH). Some of these sites, together with others which are not
considered as being of MAH, are subject to the Integrated Pollution Prevention & Control (IPPC)
Directive; the aim of the IPPC regulations is to minimise pollution caused by various sources,
requiring the compulsory issue of Integrated Environmental Authorisations (IEAs) for certain types
of plant. All the sites subject to IEA must consider using Best Available Techniques (BAT) in their

processes to reduce environmental impact.

Ozone-depleting substances
The attention paid by Finmeccanica to climate-changing gases is further demonstrated by the
procedures adopted to manage ozone-depleting substances, which are mainly present in cooling and

air-conditioning systems of the plants and whose audit is being completed.

74



During 2012, activities were conducted at various sites in order to remove systems containing these
substances and/or to replace them with other ozone-friendly ones, as provided in international
agreements and current regulations.

Furthermore, the adoption by the sites of the already mentioned Guidelines for the management of
Fluorinated Greenhouse Gases (F-gases), which deals, among other things, with the management and
disposal of ozone-depleting substances, can positively contribute to the reduction of the impacts

arising therefrom.
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FINMECCANICA AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Consistent with its strategic objectives, in 2012 Finmeccanica continued programmes already under
way and initiated new research and development (R&D) programmes, focusing on those that
contribute to strengthening its technological and competitive position and featuring highly innovative

content.

Aerospace, Defence and Security

In the Aerospace, Defence and Security sectors, the subdivision of R&D into the areas of (a)
technological Research and Development and (b) Research and Development applied to
products, each under a different timeline, allows for proper planning with containment of risk,
optimising the incorporation of new technologies in Group products and launching them in such a

way that they are able to be commercially successful over time and remain competitive.

a) Technological Research and Development
These are technological developments that are sometimes described as “basic”, in that they are
highly strategic and long term, and that by their very nature require highly-qualified staff and
specialised facilities.
Activities in the microelectronics field progressed in various sectors, from the materials and
technologies to be used for microelectronic integration, ranging from individual SoC (System on
Chip) components to miniaturised, to the hybrid analogue/digital SiPs (System in Package),
involving several of the Group’s major companies (SELEX ES and the MBDA and Thales
Alenia Space Italia joint ventures).
In the area of advanced on-chip integration, in the development of gallium nitride (GaN)- based
solutions for creating high-powered, highly-efficient and reliable Monolithic Microwave
Integrated Circuits (MMIC) for radar and active array applications, activities continued to
optimize and validate the reliability of phase-essential devices for integration into products,
especially in critical applications such as space applications. At the same time activities started,
which were aimed at developing powered MMIC for AESA (Active Electronic Scanning Array)
radars, specifically operating in C-band.
With regard to multi-chip integration, activities continued for the development of high-density
integration technologies utilising 3D solutions and for the study of advanced solutions for the
thermal management of SiPs. Within the technology for the 3D integration of SiPs, new
important progresses were achieved in the development of solutions for the radio frequency (RF)
front end of active array antennas, both in airborne applications, for X-band radars, and in naval

and land applications, for C-band radars. These developments were aimed, on one side, at
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lowering costs by going beyond the traditional architectures populated by individual
transmit/receive modules developed orthogonally to the radiant plane, to concepts involving
combinations of sub-arrays on plane boards or tiles and, on the other side, at the implementation
of “conforming” antennas of considerable strategic importance for airborne applications.

As regards the issue of thermal management in SiP context, the studies on the inclusion of
Diamond microstructures in materials used in bonding, led to significant results in terms of
increase in thermal conductivity.

There was continued activity in the area of Micro Electro-Mechanical Systems (MEMS)
focusing both on electronics, especially on some key components for electronic scanning
antennas, such as high-isolation switches and on inertial sensor applications (SELEX ES),

gyroscopes and accelerometers, and chemical/bacteriological sensor applications.

Research continued in the fields of metamaterials and metastructures to be used in miniaturising
microwave devices and advanced antennas (SELEX ES). Within this sector, a study was started
on the potential solutions in metamaterials for the cloaking of structures adjacent to radar
antennas, i.e. aimed at reducing their “visibility” in the radiation path, thus mitigating any
interferences caused to the functionality of the radar by reflexes from obstacles such as radome

supports or other structures on board ship.

With regard to materials for electro-optical applications, within the collaboration between DRS
Technologies (DRS) and SELEX ES, studies continued for the optimisation of the material
(CMT - Cadmium Mercury Telluride) and configuration of the sensor, in order to increase the
operating temperatures of the IR radiation detectors up to and beyond 150-160°K, within the
MWIR (Mid-Wave Infrared) range, compared to the 70-90°K of traditional solutions. These
solutions, named HOT (High Operating Temperatures) solutions, allow a considerable reduction
of the workload of the cryogenic system with a consequent drastic reduction in the electricity
consumption of the thermal chamber system and the increase in operating life. The significant
reduction in the powers necessary to manage the IR sensor makes it possible to develop man-
portable and un-attended applications, which have so far been the uncontested domain of

uncooled technologies, less performing than CMT-based cooled technologies.

SELEX ES continued to make advances in its activities (which had been previously developed
by SELEX Sistemi Integrati) in the innovative photonic field applied to radar systems,
particularly as regards the implementation of delay lines in optic fibres in which it is possible to

set up the delay with a resolution of up to 10 bits by directing the optical signal to paths of
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b)

different length by using optical switches, and fibre-optic network architectures for broadcasting
digital and analogue signals using active array antennas.
Work continued to expand the use of fibre optic sensors in detecting chemical, biological and

explosive (CBE) threats (SELEX ES).

There was continued development of uses for photonic technologies in underwater settings,
where WASS is developing sensor and fibre optic networks for passive monitoring of maritime
areas and for advanced sonar equipment, and in the area of rail transportation, where Ansaldo
STS is researching the installation of sensors using fibre optics on railway lines. Specifically, a
device for the dynamic weighing of train cars in transit was developed in 2011 using this

technology.

Activity in the area of nanotechnologies has progressed on several fronts: in the field of
microelectronics on the use of carbon nanotubes for the manufacture of nano-electronic devices
(SELEX ES), cold cathode emitters for tubes operating in the range of GHz to THz, and
material with high thermal conductivity for microelectronic packaging (Thales Alenia Space
Italia and SELEX ES).

In the aeronautics field, work continues into the use of nanotechnologies in composite materials,
particularly in building electrically conductive composite aerostructures for protection against
lightning strikes, and the nanostructuring of metal alloys (Alenia Aermacchi). MBDA is
currently conducting studies of high-resistance nanostructured ceramics to create radomes
operating in the millimetric band. Thales Alenia Space Italia is researching high-resistance

shields to be used on re-entry vehicles and hypersonic flights.

In addition, new materials and structures technologies stimulate future development and
production capabilities, both with low infrared and electromagnetic footprints and with high
resistance thanks to the use of composite materials and specific welding treatments that are also
intended for use on future national security projects (AgustaWestland, Alenia Aermacchi and
Oto Melara).

Research and Development applied to products

All of our companies are heavily involved in maintaining, improving and streamlining their
range of products to maintain and increase their competitiveness and customer satisfaction
ratings thanks to the mentioned basic Research and Development. The Group is conducting

technological and systems development primarily in the following areas:
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in radar, with modern electronic phased-array (PA) scanning systems with integrated
personal mobile radio module arrays for earth-observation by satellite (Thales Alenia Space
Italia); aircraft and helicopter navigation and surveillance (SELEX ES) and detection of and
defence against aircraft from sea and land-based platforms, including those for air traffic
control (SELEX ES). In the field of on-board radar for airborne platforms (fixed-wing or
rotary-wing), activities continued on the transmit-receive module active in X-band, both in
terms of production of the standard module and in terms of development of advanced
versions for an increased power radiated by the standard module and for the new
configurations of the module and of arrays of modules. The transmit-receive module is the
fundamental building block for the entire family of active-array avionic radar products of
SELEX ES, which range from highly-compact PICOSAR surveillance radar, specifically
designed for use with UAVs (Unmanned Aerial Vehicles), and advanced SEA SPRAY
radars, to a multiple-mode avionic radar called VIXEN-E with active electronic scanning,
that will form the future system for combat aircraft, which has already been chosen for the
new-generation Swedish Gripen NG aircraft.

Meanwhile, SELEX ES has continued developments to revamp the exciter receiver
processor which, using new digital technologies, will improve performance, particularly of
very-high resolution image modes (synthetic aperture radar- SAR), with regard to
mechanical scanning radars (which have retained a level of market penetration) and to new
electronic scanning radars. Particularly important is the completion of the development of
the compact digital receiver which, as a result of the cooperation between SELEX ES and
Thales Alenia Space, will represent a key building block common to the different radar
systems of the companies involved. The family of C-band and active-array ground and naval
radars continued to be developed through the KRONOS family and the innovative MFRA
(Multi-Functional Radar Active) system. In the area of passive covert location radars, the
transportable demonstrator of the Aulos system allowed the solutions adopted to be
validated. Further progress has been made in the field of multi-functional and multi-role
radar systems (Multirole Active Electronically Scanned Array-MAESA), designed to satisfy
a growing demand for radar solutions integrated into a single antenna system;

the electronic warfare segment of defence electronics continues to be part of SELEX
Galileo’s core business (now SELEX ES). With its variety of systems for electromagnetic
defence against radars and missiles, the Group’s product range has expanded, allowing
Finmeccanica to complete its integrated on-board defence and surveillance range for all air
platforms. DRS has achieved important developments in the area of SIGINT (SIG

INTelligence), even cooperating with the former SELEX Elsag on field and on man-
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portable applications, where an integrated COMIT (Communications Intelligence) product
and a cutting-edge Direction Finding antenna were developed. In 2012, the Group continued
to upgrade its avionics products, expanding its catalogue with new high-performance, more
compact solutions, particularly suitable for use on UAVs, and new interesting developments
began on land applications. These developments include the continual upgrading and
extension of the protection bands of SELEX ES’s counter-improvised explosive devices
(IED) product;

in intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance (ISR) systems, significant progress was
made in SELEX ES in avionics through the upgrading of products such as the Airborne
Tactical Observation and Surveillance System (ATOS) and with the launch of various
projects aimed at developing integrated multisensory systems able to significantly improve
performance while reducing cost, size and weight, with potential application in manned and
unmanned aerial vehicles. Within this context, note the significant progresses made in the
development of the SkyISTAR system, i.e. a modular, multi-mission ISR system designed
for UAV platforms and developed based on the expertise acquired with the ATOS project;

in electro-optics for battlefield applications and for both land and sea integrated weaponry
systems, and fixed-wing and rotary-wing aircraft applications (DRS, SELEX ES). SELEX
ES, in cooperation with a well-known American company is focusing on new laser sources
and more compact systems in the development of a new generation of Direct Infrared
Counter Measures (DIRCM) for active protection of both military and civil aircraft against
man-portable missiles, at the same time as the ancillary developments that, in DRS context,
are oriented towards a DIRCM system based on elements distributed on the platform.
Development still continues on the EO Hyperspectral system for avionics applications.
Thanks to the analysis of the high-resolution image capture, this system, also designed for
space applications, using hundreds of channels in the visible and infrared bands, even
permits determination of the type of material of which the object observed is made from a
distance (SELEX ES).

DRS has completed the development of a family of smaller stabilisation platforms capable of
holding more electro-optic sensors and several types of lasers. DRS successfully completed
development of highly-integrated, low-cost, night-vision products based on non-cooling
technologies, which are also of high value to the consumer market. Finally, SELEX ES, and
DRS began development on multi-sensory solutions, based on visible and infrared band
imaging, for detecting IED threats;

in land defence systems and related components, Oto Melara has intensified development

efforts geared towards solutions applicable in asymmetric scenarios to provide solutions that
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enable operating capacity, starting with those that improve situation awareness while
reducing soldiers’ exposure to risk. Developments continued for innovative active and
passive protection Counter-Rocket, Artillery, and Mortar (CRAM) systems and the wheeled
and tracked Unmanned Ground Vehicle (UGV) families (Moving and Land Robotics), which
represent cutting-edge technology with significant market potential for that sector. Oto
Melara has begun work on extending the range of solutions in the field of guided munitions;
in missiles systems, with special reference to advanced seeker missiles, both infrared (IR)
(SELEX ES) and radar, and to active proximity fuses and related command and control
systems (MBDA), development continued on the application of new digital receivers to
improve existing seekers (Aster Meteor) and the use of passive PA antennas for missile-
based applications (MBDA);

the area of architectures for major systems for land, naval and air traffic management
command and control systems (SELEX ES), and that of specialized avionics systems
based on advanced processing, presentation and control devices for fixed-wing and rotary-
wing aircraft (AgustaWestland, Alenia Aermacchi, and SELEX ES). In this segment, the
simulation aspect is taking on a great deal of importance, particularly with the activities of
AgustaWestland and SELEX ES. The latter continued in defining a new generation of
flight simulators.

Also as to naval systems, there have been benefits from the development presently under
way on network-centric architectures with an impact on Combat Management Systems
(CMS) using modular solutions for the new generation command and control systems market
(SELEX ES).

Following the completion of the detailed architectural design for the Forza NEC (Network
Enabling Capability) project conducted by the Integrated Project Office consisting of
representatives of the Ministry of Defence and of the industrial companies
(AgustaWestland, Alenia Aermacchi, MBDA, Oto Melara and SELEX ES) the
implementation phase began. Forza NEC is a project launched by the Italian Army to make
its components network-centric in order to provide an effective response to the commitment
needs of the Italian Army in the face of a continuing increase in missions outside of Italy and
to the demand for interoperability with other Coalition Forces operating internationally;

in security (homeland security), where there continues to be a strong commitment to the
development of technologies and solutions for major systems for territorial control systems,
maritime traffic control systems, maritime and land border control systems, civil protection
and crisis management systems, as well as port and critical infrastructures security systems.

SELEX ES has been given the mission of coordinating the Group companies in developing
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joint, integrated solutions. Among SELEX ES’s achievements, those that deserve particular

mention are the studies, feasibility analyses and testing conducted in the following areas,

building upon what was done the previous year:

Testing of the first LYRA 10 prototype installed on the Lince multirole light tactical
vehicle;

Integrating LYRA Ka-band sensors into the system for monitoring traffic in the
Venice Lagoon, which is part of the MOSE (MOdulo Sperimentale Elettromeccanico)
project;

Researching the integration of a monitoring system based on a network of unattended
sensors capable of interfacing with other types of monitoring and surveillance
systems;

Developing passive electro-optical surveillance systems with automatic target
tracking;

Developing architectural solutions that are inherently resistant to cyber-attacks on
command and control systems and critical infrastructures;

Research in the field of secure quantum cryptographic protocols for encrypting
information; specifically, studying the design of the Quantum Key Distribution
Network for metropolitan area applications;

Developing modelling and simulation tools and systems in order to consolidate and
extend the ability to evaluate the performance of integrated systems in scenarios
involving multiple heterogeneous interrelated entities (sensors, surveillance centres,

command and control sensors, land- and sea-based actuators).

Also in the area of homeland security, DRS is continuing to develop command and control

and situational awareness systems for the protection of borders, forces and critical

infrastructures. These systems use a wide variety of data from surveillance systems

consisting of distributed radar, electro-optical sensors, sonar and unguarded ground sensors,

blended into a single operating vision using a service-based distributed architecture.

SELEX ES continued R&D activities as previously planned within the Law Enforcement

system as a structured support for investigative activities (identifying vehicles using the

Automatic Number Plate Reader - ANPR, Make and Model Recognition - MMR) and

Physical Security systems (intrusion detection systems, video-surveillance and monitoring of

urban areas, critical infrastructures and events) integrating video-analysis algorithms and

benchmarking performance with off-the-shelf products.
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Within the context of Integrated Security (physical security and logical security) some
synergistic solutions that might provide an adequate offering of SCADA systems in
conjunction with Cyber Security systems are at an advanced stage of research and
implementation as are the algorithms and models of Cyber Intelligence in support of the
security of critical Infrastructures and Sites and of large archives and systems for the
processing, presentation and transmission of information.

Together with the developments of the Perseus-CSP (Communication Service Platform)
platform, interoperability of heterogeneous communication systems was further implemented
that allow different organisations to communicate and interoperate if necessary, extending it
to broadband (WiFi, 3G, 4G) communications and services according to new operational
requirements in professional and military arenas. In this area, special consideration was
given to information security, for which development of IP (Internet Protocol) ciphers,
multilevel security solutions, key and access management systems have continued, with

increased focus on secure receivers under Galileo PRS.

Again as regards security, SELEX ES continued to develop products and solutions for the
identification and protection of networks from cyber-attacks (Cyber Security), particularly as
regards the most serious ones of an ATP (Advanced Persistent Threat) type. Specifically,
some very important contracts were won (such as the NCIRC (NATO Computer Incident
Response Capability) for the protection of the NATO sites) and a Supercomputer was
activated that makes it possible to work also in terms of prevention of attacks through a

correlation of events on the web.

The smart solutions, in which following the audit activities known as Green Technology
Audit completed in 2011 by the Parent, with the support of the Chief Technology Board of
the Group, which made it possible to assess the applicability of technologies, products and
solutions of the Group companies to sectors "adjacent" to the core business, particularly with
reference to green/clean technologies. In 2012 the decision was taken to register the
trademark "Planet Inspired" as a play-off characterising the technological output of the
Group. This decision is associated to specific classes of products related to the sustainable
innovation, and is being increasingly used by Finmeccanica.

Adopted since the beginning of 2012 to promote and enhance the positioning of the Group
on specific markets with significant growth, the Planet Inspired Solutions offer addresses the
following specific market sectors: Earth monitoring (Climate Change), Natural Resources
management, Energy Management, Sustainable Mobility, Healthcare & Education and

Environmental Security & Response and, more in general, the Smart Cities & Communities.
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Thanks to the development activities carried out by joint working groups between the Parent
and the Operating Companies (SELEX ES), it is now possible to note two first successes
achieved with the newly-implemented integrated technology offer "Planet Inspired
Solutions":

e in October 2012, Finmeccanica was selected as strategic partner of a Real Estate
company, Rudin Management in New York, for the development and installation, in the
next two years, of a software solution for energy optimisation and security aimed at
managing information and energy flows in 16 skyscrapers located in Manhattan;

e EXPO 2015: the Finmeccanica Group will be the technological partner of Expo 2015,
the Universal Exposition which will be held in Milan from 1 May to 31 October 2015,
for the Safe City & Main Operation Center platform.

Work continued on the development and functional consolidation of integrated intelligent
transportation systems, particularly as they relate to security and safety, for the transport of
goods and people and for new needs required for smart cities. SELEX ES, Ansaldo Energia
and Ansaldo STS have begun collaborating on researching and developing integrated
solutions for the management and security of industrial plants, oil and gas pipelines, power
plants and grids and transportation systems, using SELEX ES base products such as HMI-
GRS SCADA (for transport supervision and control) and S3I (for video-surveillance), and
Ansaldo STS’s SMS product, particularly tailored to metro and railway applications. With
regard to supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA), efforts are being made to

obtain SIL2 certification.

In naval, land, aeronautics and satellite communications, especially secure tactical and
strategic communications networks, work continued in the field of architectures for future
communications networks and network-centric services and in the development of a family
of solutions based on the software defined radio (SDR) paradigm, an essential aspect of the
emerging, irresistible need for integrated global communications (SELEXES). In 2012, tests
were carried out on hand-held and single-channel vehicular terminals, while development
activities continued on a four-channel vehicular terminal and on the Man-Pack. The R&D
activities are increasingly focusing on the development of the SW Waveforms, in order to
expand the usability of the radios to the different operating missions and to ensure the
interoperability thereof with traditional radios.

With regard to the SDR Avionics, analyses were carried out in order to define the best
configuration which could be proposed on the basis of operational requirements.

Furthermore, activities continued within the Wideband Data Link satellite communications
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segment, based on SDR platform, in order to increase the data rate of the Line of Sight
version. The development of IFF (Identification of Friend or Foe) and ADS-B (Automatic
Dependent Surveillance - Broadcast) solutions for use in UAV and military aircrafts
travelling in civilian corridors and civil aircraft led to the achievement of an important
contract with Honeywell for civil application. DRS is also working on integrating high-
performance computers, on networking and on signal processing capacity within an
intelligence communications sub-system capable of, among other things, performing
functions such as locating the source of the signal and its processing, for air and land

applications and for troops.

In the area of military and space (ground terminals) communications, efforts continue to
strengthen the Group companies’ role as a telecommunication system provider by fully
introducing IP-based convergence platforms. In this segment, SELEX ES is continuing to
develop network-centric solutions for Forza NEC forces, for the range of All-IP products, for
IP encryption and related key management systems, for satellite communications (mesh
ground terminal) where the development of SOTM (satcom-on-the-move) terminals with

Xand Ka-band phased-array electronic scanning antennas is being completed.

In professional secured communications, work continued, as part of the TETRA (TErrestrial
Trunked RAdio) project and the digital mobile radio (DMR) standard, on building
communications networks in Italy and abroad, in sectors ranging from public safety and
security to oil and gas, to transportation, in addition to numerous applications for local
agencies. Besides the completion of the TETRA catalogue and the setup of complex network
solutions for the DMR, the Core Network solutions for heterogeneous networks were further
developed, implementing a Core (CSP-Perseus) solution based on IP and SIP, capable of
supporting several radio access technologies. These also include, in addition to the
traditional technologies such as TETRA and DMR, broadband technologies such as WiFi
and LTE (Long Term Evolution), as well as extensions to military communications. In
particular, some experiments were carried out abroad as regards LTE communications in
Homeland Security context, which proved that today ours is a cutting edge solution.

In the area of professional communications for transportation, the Group continued the
development of the equipment for on-board applications, as well as the analysis of changes
related to IP signalling and movement towards broadband (LTE) began, with a strong
commitment within the standardisation bodies and in close collaboration with Ansaldo STS.
On-board systems for high-speed trains and metro systems were also successfully developed

and offered. Furthermore, development activities continued for Air Traffic Control
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communications, with the programs related to the VoIP (voice over IP) use in the land
networks and to the future development connected to the European SESAR (Single European
Sky ATM Research) programme.

In the area of satellite telecommunications, the research activities were focused on the study
of advanced solutions for new-generation broadband and military payloads, post Sicral 2,
and flexible payloads for dual applications with dedicated developments on agile frequency
converters. Self-financed activities continued for the study of new-generation UHF-band
systems and telemetry and secure command systems based on numeric architectures. The
development of payload technologies and components, such as low-noise amplifiers and
telemetry transmitters in the different bands available also continued.

In the area of satellite navigation and infomobility, studies continued for the SESAR
program for the purpose of providing technological solutions in the area of safety of life
satellite communication for new-generation ATM (Air Traffic Management) or of NavCom
platform for Aviation use. Activities continued in support of railway transportation with the
GRAIL -2 project, aimed at enhancing the autonomy capacity of a train in defining its
position, without the support of the automatic train control system (ATC).

In line with its goal of acquiring its own satellite capacity, Telespazio continued activities,
which started in 2011, for developing a satellite system capable of providing
communications services and broadband Internet access for residential customers and small
businesses in Latin America. It also continued to analyse the requirements for the
development of a product capable of offering a higher level of security of the transmitted
data, thanks to an innovative system for the local management and regeneration of
encryption keys that permits the regeneration of keys in a short time, thus allowing the
optimisation of the band. A patent application has been filed for this innovative system.

In the area of space, Thales Alenia Space Italia related to radar technology were focused on
the critical developments of enabling technologies such as new-generation transmit-receive
modules based on Gallium Nitride components, calculation platforms with very high
computational capacity and deployable antennas for compact synthetic aperture radars.
Furthermore, activities were completed for the development of critical elements regarding
payloads and platform with funds of customer-funded R&D for the 2nd generation COSMO-
Skymed system.

In orbital infrastructures and transport systems, Thales Alenia Space Italia continued to
develop enabling technologies for the space exploration within the specific programme of
the Piedmont Aerospace District and of calls for the seventh framework programme of the

European Commission. Specifically, studies related to environmental control and life
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support (ECLS) systems and energy generation systems (regenerative fuel cells).
Furthermore, studies continued on the re-entry and exploration vehicles technologies, the
integrated analysis of multi-physical phenomena and the resulting aero- thermo-dynamic
design optimisation. Within the demonstration for pressurized and landing modules,
innovative mechanisms were tested for rendezvous and docking, locomotion (i.e. hub motor)
and landing (shock absorber per landing legs), while research is being conducted into

interfaces and algorithms for collaboration between the crew and robotic systems.

In the area of GNSS (Global Navigation Satellite System) services and infrastructures,
Telespazio completed activities for the SCUTUM (SeCUr